UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI
EASTERN DIVISION
MARY DeARMON, et al.,
Plaintiff,
vVs. No. 4:99CV01422 (ERW)

GARRETT BURGESS, et al,.

. Defendants,

DEFENDANTS‘ RULE 26 DISCLOSURES

COMES NOW defendants pursuant to Rule 26 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure, and by Order of this Court, hereby make
the following disclosures: -
(A) The following individuals may have information
relevant to the disputed facts alleged in Plaintiff's Complaint;
1. Defendant P.0O. Garrett Burgess, Mobile reserve,
1200 Clark Street, St. Louis, MO 63103.
2. Defendant Sergeant Joseph Spiess, 1200 Clark
Street, St. Louis, MO 63103.
3. Defendan£ P.O. James Joyner, 1200 Clark Street, St.
Louis, MO 63103.
4. Defendant P.0O. Steve Burle, 1200 Clark Street, St.
Louis, MO 63103.
5. Defendant P.0. Clearance Hines, 1200 Clark Street,
< %-8t.  Louis, MO 63103.
%a 5 6. Defendant P.O. Edward Smoote, 1200 Clark Street,

k., “St. Louis, MO 63103. .
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1“ﬁ‘f%_ 7. Defendant P.O. Troy Eaton, 1200 Clark Street, St.
TP -
%ﬁ;guis, MO 63103.
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8. Deféndant P.0. Joseph Crews, 1200 Clark Street, St.
Louis, MO 63103.
8. Defendant P.0O. William Noonan,'lzoo Clark Street,
St. Louis, MO 63103.
10. Defendant P.O. Thomas Whyte, 1200 Clark Street, St.
Louis, MO 63103.
11. Assistant U.S. Attorney Gary M. Gaertner, 1114
Market Street, Room 401, St. Louis, MO 63101.
| 12. Special Agent James Green, A.T.F., 1222 Spruce
Stréet, St. Louis, MO 63103.
13. The Honorable Michael Calvin, Presiding Circuit
Court Justice St. Louis City, 10 N. Tucker, St. Louis, MO 63101.
(B) The following documents may contain relevant
information relating to the facts alleged in Plaintiff’s
Complaint; ‘
14. Police Report # 97072665 (Exh. A. attached).
15. Search Warrant for 1435 E. Desoto (Exh. B ) (to be
supplemented with legible copies of signatures) .
16. Affidavit in support of Search Warrant (Exh. C)
{to be supplemented with legible copy of signatures).
17. Police Department evidence log in sheet (Exh. D)

(to be supplemented) .

18. Prior convictions of Plaintiffs, (Exh. E) (to be

supplemented upon receipt).

13. Statement of Plaintiff Albert Greer of June 6,

1397 by Special Agent James Green. (Exh. F, attached)
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20. Grand Jury testimony of Albert Greer concerning
the Criminal trial of William Boyd, # $1 4:97CR301SML, June 6,

1997 (Exh. G, attached, certified copy to be supplemented) .

Respectfully submitted,

THOMAS J. RAY, CITY COUNSELOR

s

John{A. Boulrasin  #80490
Assifstant City Counselor
Attdrney for Defendants
Room 314 City Hall

St. Louis, MO 63103

(314) 622-3361

(314) 622-4956/fax

A Copy of the foregoing was sent via ordinary U.S.
mail, postage pre-paid, this 14% day of February, 2000 to Ms.

Tracy Diekemper, Attorney for plalntlff s, 714 Locust Street,
St. Louis, MO 63101.
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DEFENDANT'S

EXHIBIT
A

POLICE INCIDENT: REPORTING SYSTEM
) INCIDENT REPORT

Incident Type:

IHCT OENT

998500

Conplaint £ Status: ACTIVE

Oorliq. fSupplement:

Dist/Precinct/Bcat: 05

origination Desc:
Day of Week:

Date of Occurrence: 067031797 to 06703797
Tine of Occurrence:

Lacation Mawme:
Streeot:
Citysstate:

Type of Premises:

ORICINAL
511
o VIEW
TUE

1.4:00 to
1415 DESUTO

ST. LOULS
SIRGLE FAMILY

Invet Followup(Y¥/HN):Y

Assignaent:
Oate:
Tine:
Asgnt. Code:
DSN/Officer:
Assisted by:

06703797
14:00

580

2713 GCARRETT
4Q19 JAMES

5212

14:00

Car tlo:
BURGESS
JOYHER

Hgh: COLLEGE (f{.tf.

QG

7140

ANY WEAPONS DISCHARGED BY AH OFFICER(Y/H)? N

Sumnary:

HENTIONHED SPARCH WARRANT AT 1435 DESOTOC. A WEAPON WAS

+

LOSOR A I UP L N A VI 0 (L2

EXECUTION OF A SEARCH WARRAIT

) OFFICER JOYHER AND I, ALONG WITH OTHER
MEMBERS OF THE MOBILE RESERVE UNIT, EXECUTED THE HEREIH

AS EVIDENCE, BELIEVED TO BELONC TO SUSPECT WILLIE 8. TUHE

WEAPON WAS CONVEYED TG THE ST.

LOULS POLICE LADB TO BE

PROCESSED FOR LATENT PRINTS. SEARCH WARRANT WAS EXECUTED

RITHQUT INCIDENT.

HAME: LAST

DOHUESTIC THCIDENT:

BIAS [NCIOENT:

Property Status:
Pamaged (Y/N}:
Held as Evidonce:
Quantity:
Property Type:
Brand:

vioctrtio#u
HSTATE OF BISSOURE

HO
HO

PROPERT Y

EVIDENCE

i

SELZED



Model:
Serial Number:
Characteristics:

Estimated Value:
Property Disp:
Reference Number:
Recovery:

Loc. lecovered:

Date:

Address:
Street:
City/State:

DSN/Officer:

Assignment Code:

owner: .

Name:

Réporting Party:
NAME: LAST
FIRST
Race:
Sex:
Birth:
Date:

Location:
RESIDENCE ADDRESS:
Street: .
City/Statex
Business Address:

Street:
City/State:
Telephoné.: (Bus)

Social Security No:
Rel. to Suspect:
Marital Status:

™y

LAWMAN MK3
929451

BLUE STEEL .357 RF. Ui
SHP970607-105105

S 0

TAKEN TO LABORATGWY
G736484079

2ND FLOOR BEDROO
06/03/97

1435 DESOTO
ST. LOUIS 13,
2713 BURGESS
580

B (SUSPECT)
WILLIE

WITNESS

WITNESS
GREER
ALBERT
BLACK
MALE

06/01/54
MO

. 1435 DESOTO
ST. LOUIS - MO

3780 W FLORISSANT
ST. LOUIS MO
(314) 531-8771 Ext.

399=60<8003

BROTHER
SINGLE

ol LA #

I'AGE

i

9

RE YIS
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NAME: LAST BOYD
Fl ST WIILLIE
AGE 047 TO 047
WEIGHT . 205 TO 205
HEIGHT . 509 TO © 509
RACE BLACK
- SEX : 'MALE
BUILD ” MEDIUM . -
. COMPLEXION DARK .
FYE COLOR BROWN®
HATR._COLOR BLACK ~
- : Birth: . .
. Date: 07/11/49
' ) Location: MO
Social Security ‘No: 490-52-6605
Marital Status: SINGLE
Occupation: UNEMPLOYED
Injury:
Description: UNKNOWH'
RESTDENCE -ADDRESS: . .
Street: - . 1435 DESOTO .
City/State: ST. LOUIS M
Telephone: (Res) (314) 531-8771 E=t.
Charge:
Charge Descr: FELON IN POSSESHIGIH )
A FIREARM
Crime Catgry: FELON Date: wa/tuit.
Document No: CN/97-72665




Herein reflects the circumstances of cvents concern ng the
Execution of a State level Search Warrant at 14i' Desoto, 5
signed by Judge Michael Calvin. ¥

At approximately 13:30 hours, the follawing oflicers net at
the St. Louis Police Central Patrol In=vizion Station for a
briefi. J:
Sgt. Joseph Spiess,” DSH 113?
*P.0. Clarence Hines, DSN 3830
P.0. Steven Burle; DSN 13390
-P.0. Joseph Crews?y NSN 3679 )
P.0. William Noonan/, DSN 30%6 g A
P.o. Thomés'Whytef/DSN 41156 . ’ .
- P.0.- Edward Smoote? DSN 333u
— P.0. Troy Eaton, DSN 3438 (Caninc Pog Miko)

At 14:00 hours, the above mentioned officers responded to
1435 Desoto. 1 knocked on the door and announced in a loud
voice, "Police, Search Warrant" with no answer. It i. to be
noted that I announced "Search Warrant" three times i:. a loud
voice, which met with negative results. Fforced entry was
obtained with the use of a battering ram. HNo injurics were
sustained during the execution of the warrant to any of the
officers involved. : ‘

Sgt. Spiess ordered Canine Officer Troy Eaton and his dog -
Miko to do a cursory search of the residence for ‘suspect(s)
prior to the entry of the search warrant; tcam, for Offjcer
safety. After approximately ten minutes, Officer Eaton ‘gave
the all clear sign, stating that the residence was empty.

Before the aforementioned officers entered the residence, the
targets brother, Albert Greer, arrived at the scene and
stated that the building belonged to his brother, suspect
Willie B. and that Willie B. was in jail for a narcoticgs
violation. 1 asked Albert Greer if Willie B. had lived in

. The house prior to his arrest, to which Albert Creer stated N

the following.

“This is Albert’s house for the last several years,
he’s paying me to stay here for hin, while he’s in
jail, I'm fixing it up for the rent noney."

I was designated as the seizing officer, with the ]
responsibility to seize any evidence and have it photocgrapned
in place by Sgt. Spiess. The aforecentioned officers entered
the residence and made a systematic scarch ct saze.




o

While searching the second floor bedroun, ! !{ound tae herein
mentioned .357 revolver in a dresser iUrawer and inma~diately
seized it as evidence.

I showed the revolver to Albert Greer, =wht, tated the
following.

“That’s Willie B.’s gun, he bLought that gun two
years ago, he keeps it for protearion.. [ thought
he took it with him."

A computer check of the revolver recvealed no theft, |
subsequently the revolver was entercd inte the Recovered Gun
File by TPC Gaht, DSN 3370. [(t is to be nated that I' also
requested the gun to be printed by the lal, for latent prints.

" As the seizing officer, I also seized the two front door

locks from the outer barred door. and the inside entrance doar.
as evidence and properly marked and packagcd them and placed
them in the Mobile Reserve Property Room.

1 again interviewed Albert Greer and asked him if the : was
any money or illegal narcotics or other weapons in the
residence, to which he stated the following.

"Like I said, I thought Willie took his gun with
him, there’s no money herec and no dJdruqs that [ know
of."

Due to the front door being damaged by thé battering ram,
Albert Greer was left with the responsibility to secure the
front door.

It is to be noted-that the only damage dohe to the residence
by the involved officers was to the two front doors ‘as
mentioned. '

A computer check on Albert Greer revealed prior record, no
wanteds indicated.

Due to suspect Willie B. being in Federal custody, I will
contact the ATF Agents involved and coordinate this
investigation with theirs, involving the scizurc of the
weapon.

Police Officer Paul James, DSN 6445, on duty at the Command
Post, was advised of the execution of this search warrant.

Any further information pertinent to this 1avestigation wiil
follow in Supplemental form.
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‘CITY OF SAINT LOUIS)

STATE OF MISSOURI ) ‘

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT CITY OF ST. LOUIS
STATE OF MISSOURI

I, _P.0. Garrett Burgess DSN 2713 , BEING DULY SWORN, DEPOSE and states upon
information and belief, or personal belief that the following described (Contraband), (Property), to wit:

Crack Cocaine, Marijuana, Heroin, -Weapons, U.S. Currency, Drug

’

Transaétion'Recérds} and _any other instrumeﬁ%s~of:the crime. -
('bch'evcd.lo have been used as means for commiting the felony of) ' . ; .
Vioiation of Missouri Controlled Substance Law (Sale and Possession).
(believed to be stoleh:.) is now being heid and kept at the following place in the said City and State, to wit:
1435 Desoto, déscribed. as a two story single family apartment building
of brick and wood construction, address is clearly marked. The
building is located in the City of St. Louis, Miséouri. That the basis of the
affiant’s information and belicfis contained in the attached affidavits of witnesses to facts concerning the said matter which
affidavits are made a part hereof and are submitted herewith as a basis upon which this court may find the existence of

probable cause for the issuance of said warrant.

Wherefore complainant prays that a search warrant be issued as provided by law.
. - = . o ’ . N ~

Officer
N .. //

e

Assistant Circuit Attordey

Subscribed and sworn. 1o before me this-_, ] day of , 19 >

at AMJPM

[y

JUDGE
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STATE OF MISSOURI )

. ) SS
CITY OF SAINT LOUIS)

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT CITY OF SAINT LOUIS, STATE OF MISSOURI

THE STATE OF M]SSOURi TO ANY PEACE OFFICER IN THE STATE OF MISSOURI:

Whereas, 2 complaint in writing, duly vcnﬁedby oath, has been filed with the undersigned Judge of this court, statmg upon
mfoxmauon and belicf, and personal belief, that the following (contraband), (property) to-wit:

Crack Cocaine,Marijuana, Heroin, Weapons, U.s. Currencvi Drug

Transacl:lon RecordsL and any. other 1nstruments of the crime.

"(believed to have been uscd as means for comréitmg-ﬂzc—fdony crf‘) : ’

Violation Missouri Controlled Substance Law (Sale and Possession)
(believed to be stolen:) is being kept or held in the City and State and in,

1435 Desoto, described as a two story single family building made of

wood_and brick. The address is clearly marked The building is located

in_the City of St. LOU.J:S, Missouri. ;and, Whereas, the Judge of this Court from the sworn
allegations of szid complzint and from the supporting wriften afﬁda vits filed therewith has found that there is probable cause
10 believe that allegations of the complaint to be true and probable cause for the issnance of a search warrant therein;

Now, thercfore, these are to command you that you search the said premises above described within 10 days after the
issuance of this warrant by day or night, and take with you, if need be, the power of your city, and if said above described
property or any part thercof be found on the said premises by you, that you seize the same and take same into your
possession, making a complete and accurate inventory of the property so taken by you in the presence of the person from-
whose possession the same is taken, if that be possible, and giving to such person, a receipt for such property, together with
a copy of this warrant, or, if no person be found in possession of said property, leaving said receipt-and said-eepy-upon
the premises searched, and that you thereafier return the property so taken and seized by you, together with a duly verified

copy of the inventory thereof and with your return to this warrant to this Court to be herein dealt with in accordance with
law.

Witnessed my hand and seal of this Court on this T dayof 19:
: -
_ - -4 x f
e 7 !
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APPidavit of Search VWarrant received and filed.

Application for Search Warrant received and £Ii:z:i.,

Return and Inventory, of, Search Warrant recef ved,
and filed.. . %‘Q




"~ STATE OF MISSOURI
" .} SS. SEARCH WARRANT

¥ CITY OF ST. LOUIS
3 1435 DESOTA

Mariano V. Favazza

. CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT, CITY OF ST. LOUIS,
2, within and for the City and Staté aforesaid (said Court being a Court of Record, having a
- "Clerk and official Seal), do hereby certify that the annexed and foregoing is a full, true and ~

:

of the “origitial.

vy

Affidavit in Support of a Search Warrant

5

¢ -in the cause aforesaid, as fully as the same remains among the records and files of said

* Court in my office. ‘ .

TN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed the seal of said Court, at office, in the City of St. Louis,

this___~_ 24thgay of Aucust ,19 99

~ “Mariano V. Favazza
CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT
— .,/'/
B /2( . @4,@//‘/:_.
y — .

Ve
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AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF A SmCH WARRANT

I, Police Officer Garrett Bnggessrﬁﬁ(§713, being duly sworn depose
the following to wit:— . :

. . I have -Been a Police-Officer with the St.Louis Metropolitan Police
Department since April of 1987, and I am currently assigned to the
Mobile Reserve Section. .-

On_06-01-97—I-—wab—contacted by a confidential informant who has

"proven reliable in the past to other Law Enforcement Agencies. I have

been .informed by other Law Enforcement Agencies who have worked with

the informant and have ongoing investigations which resulted the arrest

and conviction of several individuals with cases still pending in the s
State and Fedexral Courts. ’

The informant stated that a black Female who he/she knows as Mary
160-180 pounds, 5’3" - 5‘S*", medium complexion is allowing illegal
narcotics to be sold and stored from her residence at 1435 Desoto. The
informant stated that Mary has allowed an individual named Willie Boyd
to use her ‘house to stcre his narcotics and monies obtained from
illegal drug trafficking. It is to be noted that Willie Boyd is in
custody for drug trafficking at the time of this writing. The informat
stated that associates of Willie Boyd &re continuing his drug trade,
while he is in custody. The informant stated that in the last twenty
four hours he/she had been in the residence and he/she observed two
unknown black males in possession of several ounces of -crack cocaine
dand black tar heroin. The informant stated that he saw various types of
weapon’s throughout the residence and .on their perseas. .

The informant further advised that he/she observed two unknown
plagk males package the crack cocaine into smaller packages for
individual sales. The infdrmant further advised that he/she observed
the.two unknown black males count and divide the black tar heroin into
dividual packages to be sold. The black males were observed placing
the packages under the bed and dresser located in the upstairs bedroom

and theg place one pistol under the couch located in the livingroom of
the residence. g

The informant stated that the two black male subjects keeps the
crack.and heroin inside the residence in mention to sell in large
quantities to avoid excessive foot traffic and detection by police. The
b}ack.male subjects also keeps weapons in the residence for protection.
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On 06-02-97, at 0800hrs. Officer James Joyner DSN 4019, and I set
up a surveillance point with an unobstructed view of the front of 1435
Desote. During the surveillance we observed several unknown black males
walk up' to the  front door. of 1435 Desoto and knock. The front door.
would be answered by a black male matching the ‘description and pedigree
of the two black subjects as given by the informant. A black male would

then make a hand to hand transactions with each transaction lastlng
approximatley one to three mlnutes.

It should be noted that Federal Marshall’s arrested Willie Boyd
hiding in the residence of 1435 Desoto.

R rutilities check of 1435 Desoto revealed the name of -Mary -
Bearmon, B/F, DOB 03-12-23, SSN 494-24-8866.

1435 Desoto is a single famlly brick structure with the address
clearly marked. This dwelling is located W1th1n the city of St. Louis.

The informant stated that he belleves that 1435 Desoto is being

used as a safe house by Willie Boyd and associates to store illegal
drugs and weapons.

It is my firm belief that crack cocaine and heroin is being stored
and distributed from this residence.

Subscribed and sworn to before me thls

day of __ , 1997, at
a.m./p.m. .

P.O. Garrett Burgess DSN-2713
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o ‘UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI,
in«z Market * Room 401 * St. Louis, MO 63101 * 5392200 * 539-2309 (FAX)
f . FAX TRANSMITTAL -

- DATE:  _/2-22- 7

£ 1o, Albert L @Vf&n

. FROM: bq.ré/ éqerfffx‘fl/

S A
t' MESSAGE: Heres annihey

P il )
AR . * %

indevview of  Alhect L Qreen

r———

_ b22-4ase

PLEASE DELIVER IMMEDIATELY
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REPORT QF INTERVIEW

With Albert Lae Greer, 1435 East DeSoto, st. Louls, Missouri,
mada on June 6§, 1997, by 8pecial Agent James Green, Bursau of

Alcohol, Tobacco & Firearms (ATF).

Oon June 6, 1597, at 4:31 p.m., Special Agent (S5A) Randy Bodenschatg
and SR James Green oontacted Albert Lee Grear at his residence,
- 1435 East DeSoto, S8t. Louis, Nissouri, relative to the ongoinhg
federal investigation of Willia E. BOYD for the violation of
foderal fixeiarms and narcotics laws.

8A Bodenschatz and SA Green responded to the addrass on DeSato to
serve a federal Grand Jury subpoena for Greer relativa to the
investigation. SA"Green had been advised by .the. Daputy U.S.
Marshal (DUSM).-Luke-J. Adlar that he had justispokan-with.Greer and
that Greer indicated that he was going to leava. town For -Kansas
’ City. DUSM Adler etated that Greer advised him that -S8haron Troupe
(Willie Bayd's fiancke) had contacted Greer relative 4o the
l racovery of & firearm :from the residence on DeSoto by St. Laouis
Metropolitan Police Department Mobile Rasserve Officars.

t . Subseguent to tha recovery of the firearma by the officers, Grear

" made an allegation to the Internal Affairs Division (IAD) of the
8t. Louis Metropolitan Police Department concerning the loss of
33,500 in U.8. currency during the search warrant exacution by the
Mobile Resarve Officers.

Upon arxrival at 1435 East DeSoto, SA Grean handed Greer his copy -of
tha federal Grand Jury subpoena requiring his testimony on Jurie 11,
1997, at 11:00 a.m. at the United States Court and Custom House,
1114 Market Street, St. Louis, Missouri. B8A Groen advisad Greer
that _he- was-under federal subpoana and his appearanca would bs
required on that date and tima. 8A Green adviged Greser that an
questions-regarding the subpoena could bs directed to Asaistan
United Statea Attorney (AUSA) Gary M. Gaertner, Jr. who it handling
the prosecution of the BOYD case. Greer indicated that .he
gngcratood tha aubpoena and would be at the courthouse on that
ate.

8A Green advised Greer that the subpoena vasg in raforence to the
racovery of the firearm at 1435 Fast DaSoto. Greer stated that a
neighbor had contacted him at the shop (3780 W. Florisgant) and
told him that the polica were at his houaa. Greer ctated that be
: Cama tTO the house and talked to the police- on the front porch.
! . Greex stated that hae told the police that if there is mometBEing in
the house, I don't know nothing about it. Greer stated that the
firearm recovered by the police was not his qun. Greer stated th::nt
ba told the polioce. to check it for fingsrprints, my prints aren't
on it. Greer stated that he does not recall telling the police
that the gun belonged ‘to Willie (BOYD). . %

N
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Greer statad that ha had maybe $1,200 to $1,500 in ocash in the
house, but was not sure. Graar ntated that the housae was owned by
Mary DaeArmond. Greer stated that ha was trying to £ind out if his
oousin, 8Stanley Boyd, took the money.. Greer stated that, *I don't
believe the polics took the money." G@Grear furthar gtatsd that the
cousin (Stanley Boyd) *"might have taken the money to smoke sonms
orack." Greer stated that Stanley is a crack cocaine usar and that
ha had been up and down the street to see if his cousin had’ been
buying any craok cocaina. ".'

Greexr stated that he and - Sharon Troupe vwent to the- Police
Department YAD together. Greer statad that Sharon Troupe picked

:.' hinup from work ta take him to TAD. Creer stated that Troupa told

him to ®ride with me"™ and she axked about what was nissing from tha-
house. OGreer stated that ha told har that baseball cards ware
nissing from the housa. At that point of the interview, Greax
stated, "I am scared to death.” Greer stated that wWillle (BOYD)

T e

didn't tell him to claim the money was missing. Greer stated that _'

Sharon had told him to ride with har and that ghe estimated that
$3,500 was migsing and told him that the police probably took-it
gince he couldn't f£ind it. ‘Graer again gtated regardimfy the
nissing monay, "X don't think the police had enything to do with
it, since I dug into it."™ Greer stated that he had last sawv tha
noney a week or so prior t¢ the search warrant exeacution.

Graaxr stated that this is the smaecond incident regarding miesing
money. Grear stated, "I bet Stanley took it." Grear stated that
on a prior occasion, another brother had taken wmonay from his
wallat. Graeer stated that he found the basmeball caxds and Sta.rWars
cards that he thought were missing from the residence.

' The foregoing raport of interview was reducaed to writ:lng tol).wing

the intarview by the undexsigned agcnt. _

Bf 7amal Graan, \ATF

I
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U.S. Depurtment of Justice

United States Atiorney
Eastern District of Missouri

VIA PAX NUMBER 622-~4956
Nr. John A. Bouhasin
Assistant City Counselor

* Dear John:

U.S Courtond Custom Housa Direct Uine (314) S39-6856
1114 Market Sirest, Room 401 Offica (314) 339.2200
St Louts, Missours 63101 Fax (314) 5392309

December 16, 1999

RE: Albert Greer Grand Jurxy Testimony

Please find. enclosed a copy of Albert Greer's Grand Jury
If you have any further questions, please call me.

testimony.

1/1°d 21x

966¥22396

Respectfully,

MICHAEL W. REAP

United States Attorney -
g™ / (/’ .. ] .
~ da e

N 4 :
<" GARY M+ G R, LR, 7
Assistant Pnited States Attorney
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' 1 ALBERT GREER
! 2 being first dniy sworn, test;fied as follows:
I 3 QUESTIONS BY MR. GAERTNER: .
E 4 Q Would you pleasé staté your name, sir.
! 5 A Albert Greer. |
I 6 Q And how do you spell your last name?
' 7 A G-r-gfe-x.
' 8 Q What is your date of pirth?
' 9 A -~ 6/1/54.
10 Q Do you.kgow your Social Security number?
' 11 A 499-50-8003.
b :
12 Q Okay. And you've been informed that this
| 13 . is a federal grand jury, correct, sir?‘
l 14 A Yes.
15 Q That this is a group of citizens of the
| 16 community that have come to listen to facts
' 17 concerning crimeés, correct?
| 18 A Yes, sir.
| ' 19 Q And that you swore an oath to tell the
20 truth, right?
21 A ’fes; sir. ‘
22 Q And that if you lie, you'll be. charged
23 with lying, a perjury charge, and that carries up
24 to about a five year imprisonment. You'fe aware
25 of that fact, correct?

10/2°d (21x 95662296 01 WYBS:TT 66-91-21 182€ GES #TF 440 CLItM cn wius
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ALBERT GREER

A ¥¢s, I am.

(0] We went through that, carrect?

A Yes. ‘

Q With regard to -- you live over on 1435
DeSoto, correct?

A fasf.sir.

Q And who owns that house?

A Miss Mary DeArmon.

Q  and vho is that?

a That's Willie mdtker.

Q Willie Boyd's mother, right?

I Yas.

b - And Wiilie Boyd used to stay over on 1435
DeSoto sometimes, correct?

A Off and on.

Q He'd come and stay one or two nights, and
ILén 1eave?

.3 Something like that, yeéﬁ.

Q ﬁe'd sleep there sometimes?

A Yes. ' _

Q And Mohammed Mateen would stay there
sométimes? -

A Not as .often.” He'd come sﬁend a night or

two every now and then.
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ALBERT GREER
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nights, right?
A Yes .-
Q hnd.prior to -- Mr. Boyd was arrested in

You‘'re aware of that?

sometimes,

A

Q

brother,

o Y O W

acesr0n

correct?
That*'s a long time ago.
But he -~

right?

Right .
Kenneth Boyd?
Kenneth, yes.

And you were contacted when

0l WUTCITT RR-QT-2T

O ree o

A . qu, I am.

Q And prior to that, he would sometimes stay
like come and .stay, right, immediately_p;ior to
Februaxy? He wouldn't say every nighp, but he'd
stay a cQupie nights? .

A He'd pass through like girlfriends, you
"know, something like that.. That's about it;

Q So you work over at Boyd's A-One Auto
Repairxr, correct? .

A Yes. Part time.

Q And Mrx. Willie Boyd.works there too

that's owned by Willie Boyd's

you werxe
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ALBERT GREER
working over there on Tuesday, June 3rd at about
2:00, weren't you?
. A Yes.
Q And you were contacted becauée the'police
were at the -- at your house at_1435 DeSotao?
A Yes.
Q And they were in the house, correct?
A Yes, sirc. .

Q And at that time they had pulled:a pistol
cut of the house; isn't that correct? .

A Yes, it is.

Q And you talked to the police about that

pistol, right?

A Thej asked ne waé.it mine.

Q And it wasn't your pistol, was it?

A No .

Q And is that a pistol that Mr. Willie Boyd

kept over there sometimes when he'd go there for

ﬁrotection?
A I've never seen that pistolt Never seen
it. .
Q Did you tell the police that sometimes

Willie would keep a gun over there?

A A long time ago. I would have knew it was

NMAV s em s sane
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ALBERT GREER
thefe.
Q Did you teéell the police that sometimes
Willie kept the gun in the house? . ' |
a As I said, a long time ago.
Q. Like how long sga?
‘A I. guess it wasn't quite a year;'you know,
before he.gbt arrested.
Q Béfqre.ﬁe got arrested he'd keep a gun
over there.
A __ You know what I'm saying. I didn*t know
he kept it there, I'm saying like that. -
Q But ﬁe wduld havé_a gun there?z
A  You know what I'm saying? That*‘s what I

think. I just go by what I think.

Q Well, I'm saying before he got arrested,
yo&‘know,'like six months before he got arrested,
or a year beforxe he got arrested, sometimes there

.'would be a gun over there‘for him, rigqht?.

A I don't say it's his.

Q Did he have a gun over there for his
protection sometimesa?

A X had a suspicion but I‘never'seen it is
what I‘'m saying. - .

Q Did he ever tell you that?

TRV, A e~
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1 ALBERT GREER
2 A No.
3 Q ‘pid you'évef,seé a gun over there?
4 A _ iong time ago. -
s Q . Did you see a gun in the room where Willie
6 would -stay sometimes? . ' |
7, A ' No. I didn't go in_fhere.
8 Q Whose. gun was it? ‘
S A I say I.dén't e?en go in there.
10 . Q  Well, whose gun wag it?
11 A I said I never seen one there.
12 - ) Q You said sometimes there was a gun over
13 * there you said.. - . | | | |
14 . A I'm talking about a found gqun can be gone
15 now. |
16 Q Because the police took it?
12 A Yes. A long time ago.
13 0 Whooe guns WeIG Lhoasi
19 A I don't know. Wasn't mine.
20 Q So after -- when the police tame in there,
21 you did tell them that sometim;s ~— the gun that
22 wvas in there was Wiliie'é'that he kepé in thexe
23 for protection, right? | .
24 - A I did not say that.
25 Q Okay. After the police left, Sharon -

~mw et masees
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ALBERT GREER

Troupe called you, correct; or came by your work,

corrects
A Yes. I was thinking it was the same day.
Q And what did she ask you to do? -
A She 'asked did I lose anything dufing the
.éearch, and I said I really didn“t have a chance

to look around. And so I said I.was missing some

_baseball cards - you know, a big set of baseball

cards. They worth ‘about $1,500, something like

that. And Y had some cash in the house and that

was it.

Q So did she drive you down to Internal
Aff31rg at the polica department?

A Um-hmm.

Q And did you report to the police
department that the police officers that came in

Ehavs stole money?
A Well, I said I missed it. Like I say,
when I started cleaning my room up good, I found

the carxds up under a bunch of clothes. I cleaned
my closet out and I found the cards up under
there, and then I found everything.

Q You found the cards. You fsund

~everything.
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ALBERT GREER

R Yedy il |
Q But you had reported that the police had
" stolen -~ ) '
A '~ I just couldn-°t fiqd it.  That's yhat'i£~
is. : .
Q But Sharon wanted foh to go down there to

rsport that 1t was - stolen?

‘A Well 1 was more Or less rushed to do

that. I don*'t think I°d have did it on my own. -

0 But the police didn't steal any money.from
you? ' .
A Ng.
Q They‘didn't steal any cards from you?
A No. I found‘thém.
Q .Nothing was missing from ybur house?
A Nothing was miss;ng.
Q '~ They didn‘'t threaten you or beat jou, dié
they? ‘ .
A ° No.
Q There were niée to you?z
"R Yeah.
Q@ . And Sharon Troupe talked to you about that

Pistol that was discovered, right?

A She asked me what did they get out the

9S6¥2296 A1 LHICITT cconT v L IR -
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ALBERT GREER

house, and I said oply.th;ng'wag in the;e'was a’
pistol and that'wa§ it7

Q What did shé géli you to té1l them abéut'
that pistbl,'éir?' ' .

A She §ian{t.tell me to tell them. She
didn't know it was there.-'. _. |

MR. GAERTNER:_Any furthér-ques%%eﬂs~gf Mr.

Greer? . -

Q When you talked to ATF,ngnt.Jim Green,

did you tell him that you were very fearful, very

gcareds?
A That's natural. Yeah.
Q And you know Willie Boyd well, don*t you?

- A Pretty well.
MR. GAERTNER: I have no further guestions.

Any furthex quesEionp’ Bhank you, Mr. arger..

THE -FOREPERSON: I do. Are you fearful --

would ‘that fear stop you from telling the truth?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE FOREPERSON: Or cause you to change -=

THE WITNESS: I have no reason.to lie,
because I don't -+~ I have never sold drugs in my
life, never shot a pistol in my life, I never did

nofhing like that.
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ALBERT GREER

THE FORGPERSON: But would that fear 5top

you from telling something that you may know about

someone else?
THE WITNESS: It's pretty strong.
Q Willie Boyd has sold drugs in the past
that you know of?

A Years ago.

Q Years quf

A Um—hmm. ‘

Q Has he sold drugs recently that you know
of?

A Not thgt I know of.

Q Do you --

A I don‘t discuss anything, nothing. We

-

don't transact anything, we don't discuss

anythin?- I'm just the handyman. That's all I

‘do. I-wouldn't have it. I'm not a strong enough

person for that. I'm not.
MR. GAERTNER: No further questions.

(The witness was excused).
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

EASTERN DIVISION
MARY DEARMON, et al., ).
Plaintiffs, ;
vs. ; No. 4:99CV1422 ERW
GARRETT BURGESS, et al., ;
Defendants. . ;

ANSWERS AND OBJECTIONS TO
PLAINTIFES’ SECOND SET OF INTERROGATORIES

DIRECTED TO DEFENDANT GARRETT BURGESS
COME NOW Plaintiffs and request that, pursuant to Rule 33 of the Federal Rules

of Civil Procedure, Defendant Garrett Burgess respond within thirty (30)' days to
Plaintiffs’ Second Set of Interrogatories as follows.

DEFINITIONS

A. "Documents” or “documentation” shall mean the original, all copies and
drafts of writings of ar‘ty.kind, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
correspondence, memoranda, reports, minutes, pamphlets, notes, letters, telegrams,
messages (including reports, notes and memoranda of telephone conversations and
conferences), calendar and' diary entries, receipts, contracts, research articles,
treatises, records, data, and compilations, e-mail, computer disks, tapes, files and hard
drives. Designated documents are to be taken.to include all attachments, enclosures
and other documents that are attached to, relate to or refer to such designated
documents.

B. | "ldentify” or "identity” with respect to documents shall mean state the

author, addressee, persons copied, date, subject matter and document character (e.g.,

Appendix-T



ANSWER:

ANSWER:

ANSWER:

9.

i) the mode of communication;

i. Telephone conversation.

iM) witnesses to the conversation;

if. None.

iiif) the length of the conversation; and

iii. I do not recall.

iv) any documentation of the communication, other than the

affidavit in support of the search warrant.

iv. HNone.

o~

Identify and describe in detail any communication you had with any person

outside of the Police Department, incduding persons from the U.S. Attommey’s office,

relating to conducting a search at 1435 E. DeSoto prior to the search on June 3, 1997



and/or relating to providing evidence, testimony or other information after the search was

concluded.
ANS : In June of 1997, I worked closely with several Federal
agenc%es concerning weapons, drugs, and convicted felons. 1 believe

that I spoke with ATF agent James Green subsequent to the search of

6/3/97, -relative to the Federal Government obtaining the door knobs

and locks seized at 1435 E. DeSoto. Further, I recall speaking with
Assistant United States:Attorney .Gary Gaertner regarding this matter
subsequent to the search of 6/3/97.

10. identify each person whom you are planning to call as an expert witness at
the trial of this action. With respect to each expert(s) identified in your Answer to this
Interrogatory, please state:

a. The subject matter on which each expert may be expected to testify;

b. - The substance of all facts about which each such expert may be
éxpectedtotestify, |

C. The substance of the opinions to which each such expert may be
expected to testify; ‘

d. The summary of the grounds for each opinion of each listed expert;
and |

e. ldentify'ar'ly reports prepared by any of the experts identified in this
interrogatory.

ANSWER: . None at this time.



M%h

Garrett Burgess
STATE OF MISSOURI )
)SS.
, C.I_'LY_.__OF.SI._J_mLI.S. )
On this 21 day of June . » 2000, before me appeared Garrett

Burgess, who being first duly swom upon his oath did state that the foregoing Answers
to Interrogatories are true and correct fo the best of his knowledge, information and

belief.
A—«‘M/ \0" )Zocdu/

Notary Public

My commission expires:

[I2-15-Q003 SUSAN IMILLER
. NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF MISSOURI
ST.LOUISCITY
MY COMMISSION EXP. DEC. 15,2003
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED STATES
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI
EASTERN DIVISION

MARY DEARMON, et al.,.

Plaintiffs,
Cause No. 4:99CVii42 ERW

VsS. 14230

GARRETT BURGESS. et al..

A N et e o

Defendants.

DEPOSITION OF GARRETT BURGESS
TAKEN ON BEHALF OF THE PLAINTIFF

August 17, 2000

e
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Reported by: Vicki Lueders
VENEZIA REPORTING & VIDEO SERVICES
2611 South Big Bend Blvd.

St. Louis. Missouri 63143

(314) 721-1617
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investigation?

A, You're talking about -- we notified the C.I. in
reference to the ongoing drug trafficking.

Q. what does that mean?

A. The C.I. called me on seve;;l occasions. I can't
remember exactiy how many, but prior to the search warrant.
At which time’we went over to do surveillance on the house.
Corroborated what he had. That's when I believe I called Jim
Green. And I believe Jim Green said he was reliable, they
used him in the past. And I Ean't -- that's all I can
remember.

Q. Okay. So that was the gist of your investigation
prior to seeking the warrant?

A. . Yes.

Q. Okay. The one other fact that I notice in there that
might trigger your memory. You said something about federal
marshals had.arrested Willie Boyd at that location. Do you
recall hd& you had that information? I think that's included
in the afﬁidé&it.

A. I don't remember how I got that information.

Q. ‘Related to the confidenfial informant, caﬁ you tell
me who that informaﬂt is? |

MR. BOUHASIN: 1I'll object. That's specifically
inadmissible evidence. I'm going to instruct you not to

answer that at this time.




1 Q. Okay. And yvou go through various things that the

.2 C.I. said. Are those things -- well, you said you talked to

At LY

3 him on 6/1. But are those things now, are you saying that

o
wiEs
W v

4 they might have been the kind of all of the things that he

a s
" Yo

said over the course of various conversations? Or was that

T A A
(8]

6 one conversation that you think you had that you got that

information from?

——
Wi e
~

A. I don't know what you're trying -- when I originally

"
we

©

s "9 spoke with the C.I. The first C.I. through Jim Green.

T Q. Okay.

- 11 A. All right. He gave me the information. He

12 corroborated the information. Okay.. He went by the house,

13 showed the house. Gave. information in reference to the house

which started our investigation. If that's the question.

Q. Okay. Then at some point did you talk to another
C.I.?

A. I'd already been talking to ameother C.I..

Q. 0kay.‘ Related to the same house and information?

A I obtained information in reference to other houses
and that house from the second C.I..

Q. Okay.

A, The second C.I. knew of the same house, is what I'm
trying to say.

Q. Was he part of the source of your decision that you

it

had a probable cause to search it? . - .-
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A. I'm sure it helped me in my decision making.
Q. Okay. Why didn't you include that in your affidavit
to the judge?
A. Becaﬁse I didn't need him. I had, I had a C.I. that

Q. Okay. And I guess what I'm trying to get at as far
as what information in there. Was that information related to
all of your conversations with their C.I. as opposed to one
single conversation? Or do you recall?

A, I don't recall.

Q. Okay. I'm going to go through some of these

statements. So if you want to look at that it might help you.

A. The affidavit?

Q. Yes.

A. Okay.

Q. You say, the third paragraph, on 6/1/97 you were

contacted by a confidential informant who has proven reliable
in the past to other law enforcement agencies. I have been
informed by other law enforcement agencies who have worked
with this informant. When you're stating that, are you

referring to Jim Green?

A, Yes.
Q. Okay. Anyone else that you're referring to in those
statements?

MR. BOUHASIN: In terms of other law enforcement
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what we talked about.

Q. Okay. Do you rgmember talking about the doorknobs at
all?

A. Yes.

Q. With Gary Gaertner as opposed to Agent Gfeen?

A. I talked to both of them about the doorknob, I'ﬁ
suré. But I.remember talking to Gary Gaertner about one of‘
the doorknobs.

Q. Okay. So, I don't know how it works. Gary Gaertner

worked for the U.S. attorney's office; is that correct?

A. Yes, he is.

Q. Okay. And Jim Green, did he work for ATF?

A. Yes, he does.

Q. Okay. Were you speaking to them separately on

separate occasions?

A. I saw them at the same time. I can’'t remember
exactly when the doorknob came in. I talked to them- several
times. They were together. I don't remember exactly when it
happened., the conversations. I just remember talking to them.
Q. Okay. Were you in charge then of getting the

doorknobs to them?

A. I was asked to bring them down.
Q. Okay. And did you do that?
A. Yes, I did.

Q. Who did you give them to? .
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1 A I remember delivering them to the U.S. attorney's

2 office. I don't remember who I gave it to.

3 Q. Were you involved at all following giving them the

4 doorknobs with the federal agents? e

5 MR. BOUHASIN: I'm sorry? o
6 Q. Were you involved with the federéi agents? Did you
L 7 coordinate any other investigation or infermation with the

8 federal agents after you gave them the doorknobs? Was there

9 any other involvement related to this case?
10 A, Not that I can recéli. ’ ' '
11 Q. Okay. Did you testify in a Grand Jury proceeding
. 12 related to this case?

3 AL No, I don't recall.

Q. Using that exhibit. Plaintiffs' Exhibit 6 I believe

is the property voucher. Can you tell me where your role ends

and where someone else's role begins as far as producing that

document?
A This is -- I have Aothing to do with this document.
Q. So,-you dropped off the evidence and then -- »
A, This is department. :
Q. -- someone else produced that? . :
Q. Is there any reason why the doorknobs are not listed

L
e

-

T

. .Oon that document?

A. Yes. It is departmental. ' |
|

A. Because they didn't receive, St. ‘Louis Police: ...

Az VAL
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LEAD ATTORNEY
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Defendant
Edward Roth represented by John A. Bouhasin
(See above for address)
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
Defendant
Mark Smith represented by John A. Bouhasin
(See above for address)
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
Defendant
Leslie Bond, Sr. represented by John A. Bouhasin
(See above for address)
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
Defendant
Clarence Harmon represented by John A. Bouhasin
The Honorable Ex-Officio Mayor (See above for address)
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
Date Filed # | Docket Text
09/09/1999 COMPLAINT; # Summons Issued: 10 # Days to Respond: 2- # Counts: 3; jury demand
(FCE) (Entered: 09/09/1999)
09/09/1999 RECEIPT # s99-009166 in the amount of $ 150.00 for civil filing fee (FCE) (Entered:
09/09/1999)
09/09/1999 TRACK INFORMATION STATEMENT filed by plaintiff Mary DeArmon track 2
preferred (FCE) (Entered: 09/09/1999)
09/09/1999 NOTICE OF PRTIVATE PROCESS SERVER ; Process Server: Special Services (FCE)
(Entered: 09/09/1999)
09/17/1999 RETURN OF SERVICE executed upon defendant Joseph Spiess on 9/10/99 by leaving
copies for police department to pick-up. (MCB) (Entered: 09/20/1999)
09/17/1999 RETURN OF SERVICE executed upon defendant William Noonan on 9/10/99 by
leaving copies for police department to pick-up (MCB) (Entered: 09/20/1999)
09/17/1999 RETURN OF SERVICE executed upon defendant Garrett Burgess on 9/10/99 by leaving
copies for police department to pick-up. (MCB) (Entered: 09/20/1999)
09/17/1999 RETURN OF SERVICE executed upon defendant Clarence Hines on 9/10/99 by leaving
copies copies with Corporate Service upon desk Clerk Dominica Patania, Police Officer,
DSN 3501 (MCB) (Entered: 09/20/1999)
09/17/1999 RETURN OF SERVICE executed upon defendant Steve Berles on 9/10/99 by leaving
copies with Corporate Service, upon police officer Dominica Patania, Desk Clerk, DSN
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expenses be paid from Court’s Atty Admission Fee Non-Appropriated Fund (FCE)
(Entered: 07/10/2000)

07/07/2000

72

DESIGNATION NEUTRAL REPORT by plaintiff, defendant Neutral: Judge Thomas M.
O'Shea date of conference: 8/15/00 time: 10:00 am location: US Courthouse (FCE)
(Entered: 07/10/2000)

07/18/2000

RULED DOCUMENT by Honorable E. R. Webber granting motion Appointment of Pro
Bono Neutral {71-1], terminating motion for order that pltf's portion of the mediation
expenses be paid from Court's Atty Admission Fee Non-Appropriated Fund [71-2] (cc:
all counsel) (MCB) (Entered: 07/18/2000)

07/18/2000

NOTICE of appointment of neutral; neutral: Thomas M. O'Shea; neutral selected by:
parties (MCB) (Entered: 07/18/2000)

07/31/2000

75

MOTION by plaintiff Mary DeArmon, plaintiff Albert Greer, plaintiff Stanley Boyd,
defendant Garrett Burgess, defendant Joseph Spiess, defendant Clarence Hines, defendant
Steve Berles, defendant Joseph Crews, defendant William Noonan, defendant Thomas
Whyte, defendant Edward Smoote, defendant Troy Eaton, defendant James Joyner,
defendant Board of Police Comr, defendant Wayman Smith III, defendant Edward Roth,
defendant Mark Smith, defendant Leslie Bond Sr, defendant Clarence Harmon to extend
time twenty days for completion of discovery (MCB) (Entered: 08/01/2000)

08/01/2000

RULED DOCUMENT by Honorable E. R. Webber granting motion to extend time
twenty days for completion of discovery [75-1] ; Disc completion ddl reset 8/21/00 (cc:
all counsel) (FCE) (Entered: 08/01/2000)

08/01/2000

71

RETURN LETTER from Clerk to Tracy A. Diekemper re: disclosure material returned
per Local Rule 3.02. (FCE) (Entered: 08/01/2000)

08/15/2000

78

ADR COMPLIANCE REPORT An ADR conference was held on 8/15/00; Neutral:
Thomas O'Shea; The parties did not achieve a settlement. (FCE) (Entered: 08/16/2000)

08/31/2000

79

MOTION by plaintiff to compel (FCE) (Entered: 09/01/2000)

09/06/2000

ORDER by Honorable E. R. Webber re Plaintiff's Motion to Compel Defendant Burgess
to Answer Questions at Oral Deposition [79-1] ; In-court hearing 9/15/00 at 9:30 (cc: all
counsel) (FCE) (Entered: 05/07/2000)

09/15/2000

81

RESPONSE by all defendants to motion to compel [79-1] (FCE) (Entered: 09/15/2000)

09/15/2000

82

RULED DOCUMENT by Honorable E. R. Webber Leave to File Defts' response [81-1]
to pltf's motion to compel is GRANTED. (cc: all counsel) (FCE) (Entered: 09/15/2000)

09/15/2000

83

MINUTES: before Honorable E. R. Webber re motion to compel [79-1] ; In-court hearing
held Arugments of counsel heard; court orders pltfs' counsel to supply the court with a

list of questions for an in camera review. order to follow; court reporter: Carleen
Horenkamp; proceedings started: 9:35 am - ended: 9:55 am (FCE) (Entered: 09/18/2000)

09/20/2000

84

RESPONSE to court by Tracy Diekemper, Counsel for plaintiffs re: [83-1], [83-2],
providing proposed questions for the in camera interview. FILED UNDER SEAL AND
PLACED IN VAULT. (GLF) Modified on 09/22/2000 (Entered: 09/22/2000)

09/20/2000

84

SEALED DOCUMENT [84-1] (GLF) (Entered: 09/22/2000)

09/27/2000

85

MOTION by defendant Garrett Burgess, defendant Joseph Spiess, defendant Clarence
Hines, defendant Steve Berles, defendant Joseph Crews, defendant Thomas Whyte,
defendant Troy Eaton to extend time to file completed motion package up to and
including November 20, 2000 (MCB) (Entered: 09/28/2000)
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09/28/2000 86 | RULED DOCUMENT by Honorable E. R. Webber granting motion to extend time to file
completed motion package up to and including November 20, 2000 [85-1] ; Notice of
Motion ddl reset for 10/30/00 ; Motion Package ddl reset for 11/20/00 (cc: all counsel)
(FCE) (Entered: 09/29/2000)

10/10/2000 87 | Notice of Motion: Summary Judgment by defendant Garrett Burgess, defendant Joseph
Spiess, defendant James Joyner, defendant Edward Smoote, defendant Clarence Hines,
defendant Troy Eaton, defendant Thomas Whyte, defendant William Noonan, defendant

Joseph Crews, defendant Steve Berles, defendant Board of Police Comr (FCE) (Entered:
10/11/2000)

10/10/2000 87 | MOTION by defendant Garrett Burgess, defendant Joseph Spiess, defendant Clarence
Hines, defendant Steve Berles, defendant Joseph Crews, defendant William Noonan,
defendant Thomas Whyte, defendant Edward Smoote, defendant Troy Eaton, defendant
James Joyner, defendant Board of Police Comr for summary judgment Date Motion
Received: January 9, 2001 [87-1] w/attached Memorandum in Support. (GLF) Modified
on 01/10/2001 (Entered: 01/10/2001)

10/10/2000 87 | RESPONSE (Titled: Memorandum in Opposition) by plaintiff Mary DeArmon, plaintiff
Albert Greer, plaintiff Stanley Boyd to motion for summary judgment Date Motion
Received: January 9, 2001 [87-1] [87-1] w/attachments A-P. (GLF) (Entered:
01/10/2001)

10/10/2000 87 | REPLY (Titled: Response to Plaintiff's Memorandum in Opposition to Motion for
Summary Judgement) by defendants to response to notice of motion motion Notice of
Motion: Summary Judgment [87-1], motion for summary judgment Date Motion
Received: Jannary 9, 2001 {87-1] [87-1] (GLF) (Entered: 01/10/2001)

10/30/2000 88 | MOTION by plaintiff Mary DeArmon, plaintiff Albert Greer, plaintiff Stanley Boyd for
order to stay ruling on defts' motion for summary judgment , and to extend time for filing
the motion package and briefing the motion for summary judgment (MCB) (Entered:
10/30/2000)

10/30/2000 89 | ORDER by Honorable E. R. Webber IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendants'
counsel shall make available the confidential informat on Thursday, November 2, 2000 at
11:00 a.m. Defendants' counsel, as an officer of the Court, shall confirm to the Court that
the person answering the Court's questions is the confidential informant, and shall remain
with the confidential informant as the court interrogates that confidential informant by
telephone. The confidential informant shall be responsible for contacting the Court via
telephone at this designated time. ; In-court hearing 11/2/00 at 11:00 a.m. (cc: all counsel)
(MCB) (Entered: 10/30/2000)

11/08/2000 90 | RULED DOCUMENT by Honorable E. R. Webber granting motion for order to stay
ruling on defts’ motion for summary judgment [88-1], granting motion to extend time for
filing the motion package and briefing the motion for summary judgment [88-2]. Motion
package due thirty days after the Court has ruled on the Motion to compel (cc: all
counsel) (MCB) (Entered: 11/08/2000)

12/13/2000 91 | MEMORANDUM AND ORDER: by Honorable E. R. Webber denying motion to compel
[79-1] (cc: all counsel) (MCB) (Entered: 12/13/2000)

12/21/2000 92 [ NOTICE by plaintiff Mary DeArmon, plaintiff Albert Greer, plaintiff Stanley Boyd of
change of address of atty Tracy A. Diekemper, who is now @ GREENSFELDER &
HEMKER, 10 S. Broadway, Ste. 2000, St. Louis, MO 63102. (FCE) (Entered:
12/26/2000)

02/07/2001 93 | MOTION by all defendants to extend pretrial compliance deadline by 30 days and to
continue trial date accordingly. (FCE) Modified on 02/08/2001 (Entered: 02/08/2001)
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
BUREAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS
1222 Spruce Street, Room 6-205
St. Louis, Missouri 63103-2818

... ‘November 13, 2000

783045:

MEMORANDUM TO: Special Agent in Charge
Kansas City Field Divisio

FRO M: LSS
St. Louis | Field Office

THRU: Group Supervisor
St. Louis’II'Field Office

SUBJECT: Request to locate Cooperating Individual

FILE NUMBER: 745519 97 0012

This memorandum will serve to document the efforts of Special Agent (SA).

St. Louis | Field Office, to locate a cooperating individual relative to the
investigation of Willie E. Boyd. On October 31, 2000, was instructed by U.S.
District Court Judge E. Richard Webber to initiate efforts to locate the subject and
arrange for the judge to speak with the individual on the telephone. Judge Webber
requested to speak with the individual regarding information provided to the St. Louis
Metropolitan Police Department (SLMPD) that is the subject of a federal lawstuit

CASE BACKGROUND

On February 1, 1997, the United States Marshals Service (USMS) arrested Wilie Boyd,
an armed career criminal, for a federal Parole Violation. Subsequent to his arrest, a
Glock, 9mm caliber, semi-automatic pistol and 33 grams of cocaine was recovered frown
the residence. Boyd was previously convicted in U.S. District Court in the Eastern
District of Missouri for Possession With [ntent to Distribute Cocaine and Possession of
an Unregistered Firearm in 1981. Boyd, a known narcatics trafficker in the St. Louis
.area, had previous arrests for homicides and at least six (6) felony convictions. The
United States Attorney’s Office requested ATF to assist with the prosecution of Boyd for

the violation of federal firearms and narcotics laws.

On April 16, 1998, Boyd was convicted on nine (9) counts of the federal indictment
following a bench trial in the matter. On October 2, 1998, U.S. District Judge Stephen
Limbaugh sentenced Boyd to 276 months of incarceration and a six (6) year term of _

' Supervised Release. Since being sentenced, Boyd has-filed humerous app(_aals and is
e suing ATF, the United States Attorney's Office, United States Marshals Serviceand

Appendix-W
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the Bureau of Prisons (BOP) for,Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) violations. Boyd
and are currently suing the St. Louis Metropolitan Police
Department (SLMPD) in feaeral court alleging violation of his civil rights and property
damage. This lawsuit stems from the execution of a state search warrant at 1403 E.
DeSoto, St. Louis, Missouri. Assistant United States Attornev (AUSA) Gary M.
Gaertner and

Boyd's narcotics trafficking was conunuing auning his incarceration ana wnat nercotcs.
firearms and currency were being kept at the residence at 1403 E. DeSoto. _-
contacted Mobile Reserve Unit officers and introduced them to the cooperating
individual. The officers, in turn, conducted an independent investigation that led to the
issuance of a state search warrant. One (1) firearm was recovered from the
aforementioned residence.

The cooperating inrisido.ot

After consultatiorr with Richard L. Poehling of the United States Attormey's Office and
St. Louis City Counselor attempted fo locate the cooperating

individual by utilizing the torowing investigative techniaues:
« Ran the subject through computer indices

« Checked the subject for ciirrant employm )
« Ran the subiect anc w utilikg
o Lefta note - i (no response).

. Contacted a FBI Agent and local police officer that dealt with the subject in the past
to generate additional leads.




BRENDA TOSSO ‘ )
1221 Riverbend, Suite 120
Dallas, TX 75247
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Audit Department
1221 River Bend #120
Dallas, Texas 75247

RE: $25,000.00 Instant Cash Giveaway
MAJOR PRIZE WINNER

BRYANT TROUPE
11950 BRAMPTON HUNT RD
FLORISSANT, MO 63033

Dear BRYANT TROUPE,

An internal audit has confirmed that you or someone in your family entered
our 1998 Sweepstakes or 1999 $50,000.00 Cash Giveaway by completing an entry
form (sample enclosed). As of this date our accounting department has
informed us that previous notices remain unclaimed.

It is my duty to inform you we are holding a vacation, valued at $1,250.00
including complimentary round-trip airfare for two, in your name. You and
your guest will fly on a major airline to your choice of Orlando or Las

Végas and enjoy tWo miglits acconmmodations!” You have™a” full year to travel.

In addition, you were assigned a random number and entered in our $25,000.00
Instant Cash Giveaway. Along with various consolation prizes, there are three
major prizes in this promotion:$25,000.00 Cash, Family Holiday Package,
valued at $700.00, or $500.00 cash.

Congratulations! Your number was pulled and you are to receive one of the
above mentioned Major Prizes!

Your next step is to call our appointment center immediately at 1-888-216-1967,
extension 222 and arrange a time for you and your spouse to visit and claim
your prizesl!

Ask to speak to one of my assistants, Sandra or Kim, who are handling this
marketing promotion. It is very important that you and your spouse bring this
letter to the gift center and at that time your winning number,000083322, will
be matched to one of the three Major Prizes.

Sincerely,

Brenda Tosso
P.S. One of my assistants, Sandra or Kim, will be on duty Monday through
Friday, 9:00 a.m. until 8:00 p.m., and Saturday, 9:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m.

See reverse of this letter for promotional guidelines. We must ask that you
bring along two forms of ID such as a major credit card and driver's license.

PLEASE CALL WITHIN 72 HOURS OF RECBIPT OF THIS LETTER. THANK YOU.

Certification Number: 006899540 .- ] |IIIIIIIIII'II"

TC-S2 3531438565134

v
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

EASTERN DIVISION :
FILED
MARY DEARMON, et. l., )
) BEC 13 200
Plaintiffs, ) U._s, D
) EASTERN DIty COURT
v ) 4:99CV1422 ERW ST. Logig O MO
)
GARRETT BURGESS, et. al., )
)
Defendants. )

R MEMORANDUM

This matter is before the Court on Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel. (Docket # 79). In this motion,
Plaintiff wishes to compel the identity of a confidential informant. As explained below, the Court must
deny Plaintiff’s motion.

A. Background Facts

The three plaintiffs in this case have brought a § 1983 action against ten St. Louis police
officers and the Board of Police Commissioners. This suit stems from a search of the Plaintiffs’
residence. Plaintiffs assert that the search warrant was invalid, claiming that there was no probable
cause to justify a warrant. Plaintiffs support this assertion by claiming that the warrant was based on
the intentionally false statements of Defendant Burgess. A judge issued the warrant after Burgess
attested in an affidavit that a confidential informant had relayed information concerning drug activities
at the Plaintiffs’ residence. The Plaintiffs claim this affidavit was the only foundation for the issuing
of the warrant.

During the deposition of Burgess, Plaintiffs’ counsel asked Burgess to name the identity of his
confidential informant. Defense counsel objected, claiming this information was privileged and not

admissible. It is this objection that provides the dispute for the present motion to compel. The

Appendix-Y
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Plaintiffs assert that information in the affidavit was suspect. They further assert that the affidavit
contains information that was misrepresented by either Burgess or the confidential informant. They
aver that it is necessary to discover the identity of the confidential informant, to challenge the
allegations made within the' affidavit.

On September 15, 2000, a hearing was held before this Court regarding this motion. At that
hearing, the Court held that it would conduct an in camera review with the confidential informant in
order to ascertain whether the disclosure of his or her identity was vital to a fair trial. The Court also
ordered Plaintiffs to submit a list of proposed questions to ask the confidential informant during this
interview. After a lengthy delay, the Court conducted a review with the informant. During a
conversation with the confidential informant, the Court elicited information regarding the basis for this
informant’s knowledge concerning the Plaintiffs’ residence. The Court elicited this information by
asking the informant questions from Plaintiffs’ list of proposed questions.

B. Movant’s Burden

The case law makes it clear that a party seeking government disclosure of the identity of a
confidential informant bears a heavy burden. Generally, the Government has a qualified privilege to
withhold the identity of confidential informants. Rovario v. U.S., 353 U.S. 53 (1957). By preserving
their anonymity, the privilege fosters the public's interest in effective law enforcement by encouraging
citizens to communicate to the government information regarding the commission of crimes. United
States v, Whitley, 734 F.2d 1129, 1137 (6® Cir.1984), citing Rovario, 353 U.S. at 59.

This privilege will yield, however, when the moving party “bears the burden of demonstrating
the need for disclosure.” United States v. Wright, 145 F.3d 972, 975 (8" Cir. 1998). See also United

States v, Moore, 129 F.3d 989, 992 (8" Cir. 1997) (holding that the moving party bears the burden of
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demonstrating the need for disclosure). The moving party’s burden is great. In order to show a
sufficient need for disclosure of a confidential informant’s identity, the moving party must show that
disclosure is “vital to a fair trial.” Wright, 145 F.3d at 975. See also United States v. Bourbon, 819 F.2d
856, 860 (8™ Cir. 1987) (holding that “disclosure of a confidential informant will not be ordered unless
it is vital to a fair trial”). It is important to note that mere speculation as to why a moving party needs
this disclosure fails to meet this burden. U.S. v. Chevre, 146 F.3d 622, 624 (8" Cir. 1998). See also
United States v. Fairchild, 122 F.3d 605, 609 (8*Cir. 1997) (holding that “mere speculation fails to
meet this burden™); U.S. v. Harrington, 951 F.2d 876, 877 (8" cir. 1991) (“In order to override the
government’s privilege of nondisclosure, defendants must establish beyond mere speculation that the
informant’s testimony will be material to the determination of the case.”).

Because “there is no litmus test to determine when disclosure is justifiable,” courts must

consider the particular circumstances of each case. Harrington, 951 F.2d at 877, citing Roviaro, 353

U.S. at 59. In making a determination on whether to compel such a disclosure, a court must balance
the moving party’s right to the disclosure against the government’s privilege to withhold the identity
of the confidential informant. Wright, 145 F.3d at 975. See also United States v, Harrington, 951 F.2d
876, 877 (8" Cir. 1991) (holding that in making this determination, “the court must weigh the
defendant’s right to information against the government’s privilege to withhold the identity of its
confidential informant”). When performing this balancing test, risk to the safety of the confidential
informant is clearly a factor that the court must consider. See United States v. Sai Keung Wong, 886
F.2d 252, 256 (9" Cir. 1989) (observing that the potential for danger to the confidential informant
outweighed any possible need for the disclosure of his identity). Courts must also consider the

materiality of the evidence that could be provided by the confidential informant. Harrington, 951 U.S.
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at 877. “A trial court abuses its discretion if it orders disclosure absent a showing of materiality.”1d.,
citing U.S. v. Grisham, 748 F.2d 460, 463 (8" Cir. 1984).

It is important to note that the Government’s privilege to withhold the identity of a confidential
informant is less likely to yield in a civil case because the informant's identity is not usually essential

to the preparation of civil litigation. U.S. v. One 1986 Chevrolet Van, 927 F.2d 39, 43 (1% Cir. 1991).

Since the guilt or innocence of a criminal defendant may be viewed as a much more significant
determination than the outcome of civil litigation, “that difference in significance is a factor to be
considered when the privilege is asserted in a civil proceeding.” Holman v. Cayce, 873 F.2d 944, 946
(6* Cir. 1989).

Finally, it is also important to note that the Government'’s privilege will almost never yield
when the confidential informant is merely a “tipster,” as opposed to someone who participated in the
alleged crime with the defendant. See U.S. v. Sharp, 778 F.2d 1182, 1186 n. 2 (6™ Cir. 1985) (holding
that when “the informant has not been an ‘active participant in the events underlying the defendant’s
potential criminal liability,” the balance weiéhs heavily towards nondisclosure™). Indeed, “it is well
established that in “tipster’ cases, where the informant is not a necessary witness to the facts, disclosure

of the informant is not required.” Moore, 129 F.3d at 992. See also U.S. v. Sykes, 977 F.2d 1242,

1245-46 (8" Cir. 1992) (holding that in tipster cases, disclosure of the informant’s identity is generally
not material to the outcome of the case, and therefore is not required); Harrington, 951 F.2d at 878 (“In
cases involving ‘tipsters’ who merely convey information to the government but neither witness nor
participate in the offense, disclosure is generally not material to the outcome of the case and is therefore
not required.”).

C. Application to Plaintiffs’ Motion
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In the present case, the Plaintiffs have failed to meet their burden in demonstrating the need for
disclosure of the confidential informant’s identity. Indeed, all of the legal factors stated above mandate
that Plaintiffs’ motion be denied. The Plaintiffs do not point to any specific evidence demonstrating
the need for this disclosure. Instead, they merely hypothesize, without any supporting evidence, that
the confidential informant was untruthful in whatever information the he or she gave to the police. As
stated above, mere speculation that the information possessed by a confidential informant may be
relevant to a case can never be the basis for disclosure of the confidential informant’s identity.See, e.g.,

Chevre, 146 F.3d at 624. Plaintiff has failed to identify how any information possessed by the

confidential informant would be *vital to a fair trial,” as required by Wright, 145 F.3d at 975 and
Bourbon, 819 F.2d at 860. Plaintiff has failed to demonstrate how any specific information possessed
by the confidential informant would even be material to this case, as required by Harrington, 951 U.S.
at 877 and Grisham, 748 F.2d at 463. In short, Plaintiff has failed to provide this Court with any
evidence demonstrating a need for disclosure. The fact that the present case is a civil case, as opposed
to a criminal trial, only further supports the Court’s conclusion that disclosure is not warranted in this
case. See One 1986 Chevrolet Van, 927 F.2d at 43.

Moreover, when conducting its jn camera review with the confidential informant, that
informant apprized the Court of the fact that he or she had merely provided a tip to the police
concerning Plaintiff’s residence. That review also revealed that the informant did not participate in any
alleged wrongdoing at Plaintiff’s residence. As stated above, the Government’s privilege will almost
never yield when the confidential info'rmant is merely a “tipster,” as opposed to someone who

participated in an alleged crime with a defendant. See Moore, 129 F.3d at 992; Sykes, 977 F.2d at
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1245-46. Consequently, the fact that the confidential informant merely conveyed information to the
police provides further support for denial of Plaintiffs’ motion.

Finally, both the police department and the confidential informant have provided the Court with
credible evidence indicating confidential informant’s safety would be severely jeopardized by the
release of his or her name. As stated above, the potential danger imposed upon a confidential
informant caused by the disclosure of that informant’s identity is a significant factor this Court must
weigh when determining whether to compel disclosure. See, e.g., Sai Keung Wong, 886 F.2d at 256.
From its conversation with the confidential informant, the Court is convinced that this person could
very likely be subjected to physical harm if his or her identity were to be publically exposed during
these proceedings. The Court refuses to expose the confidential informant in the present case to the
risk of severe physical danger when the Plaintiffs have completely failed to demonstrate a need for that
informant’s identity.

D. Conclusion
Every factor relevant to Plaintiffs’ Motion to Compel the Identity of Confidential Informant
demands that the confidential informant’s identity not be disclosed in the present case. Therefore, the
Court must deny Plaintiffs’ motion.
Accordingly,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel (Docket # 79) is DENIED.

So ordered this_/ Jé day of December, 2000.

E. RICHARD WEBBER
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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i " UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

- EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI
EASTERN DIVISION

.—-'-—-J\

'MARY DeARMON, et. al,,

P}' - I.m
v

v.

-~

No. 4:995CV1422 ERW
_GARRETT BURGESS, ct. al.,

k. ¥ - ’ Defel)datﬂs

N o N et N N N N N

1 : MEMORANDUM AND ORDER
# ' .
This matter is before the Court on the Defendants” Motion for Summary Judgment. (Docket

L #87): OnFebmaryZO,ZQOl,theComtissxwdanorderregardingtlﬁsmoﬁon,inwhichtheCouft
1* requested the filing of supplemental briefs from both parties. (Docket #95). On March 5, 2001, the
) Defendants filed their Supplemental Brief in Support of their Motion for Summary Judgment.
U (Docket # 96). In tum, the Plaintiffs filed their Snpple.mental Memorandum on March 13, 2001.
(Docket # 97)7 For the reasons listed below, the Court grants the Defendants® motion for Summary
judgment on each of the Plaintiffs® claims.
A. BACKGROUND FACTS
H * The Plaintiffs have filed this canse of action pursuant 10 42 U.S.C. § 1983, Their claims stem
from the Defendants’ search and seiznre performed at Plaintiff Mary DeArmon’s residence at 1435

H besmoiQSLLmﬁs,Lﬁmu;i. Since 1990, DeArmon has allowed her son, Plaintiff Stantey Boyd,
{E ‘and her cousin, Plaintiff Albert Gréer, to live at this residence.

On June 2, 1957, Defendant Burgess provided a sworn affidavit to Judge Micha] Calvin in
which Burgess sought a warrant to search this residence. In his affidavit, Burgess attested that a

confidential informant had witnessed the condncting of drug transactions at the DeSoto residence.
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’ "Accordmgtonmgm theconﬁdenhalﬁif advised him et between Moy 31 sd oo 1.

1997, he had been within the residence of 1435 DeSoto, and that he bélieved the residence to be

owned by an African-American female named "Mary.” The informant also told Burgess that during

’ ﬂ):is.twenty-four hour period, he had observed several unknown Afijican-American males at this

Mwhommmmofmm@mm This informant advised him that .
"Mary” was allowing an individual named Willie Boyd to store narcotics within the residence.
While Boyd was imprisoned at this time, the confidential informant believed that Mary DeArmon

Waspamnungassocmw of Boyd to continne Boyd’s narcotics business at the DeSoto residence.

- The confidential informant also told Burgess that he had observed the packaging of drugs at this’

residence by two males, and that he had observed several firearms on the premnises.

According to Burgess, he and Defendant Joyner set up surveillance of the.DeSoto residence
on June 2, 1997. During this surveillance, he and Officer Joyner witnessed what appeared to-be the
occurrence of hand-to-hand drug transactions with two African-American males. Burgess has
testified that these two males appeared to fit the descriptions of two men provided by the confidential
— . ‘ L

| Subsequently, on June 2, 1997, Burgess provided a swomn afEdaﬁttohdg‘cCalvin (See
Defendant’s Exkibit B). In this affidavit, Burgess stated that he had been "comtacted by a
confidential informant who has proved to be reliable in the past to other Law Enfor_cemmt

Agei:cies.“ (Id.) Burgess also relayed the informant’s dmmpnon of drug transactions observed by

the informant at the DeSoto residence. In this affidavit Burgess also stated that after personally

éngaging in surveillance of this residence, he had witnessed what appeared to be the occuirence of

hand-to-hand drug transactions. In addition, Burgess also stated that "{ijt should be noted that.
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SRS Folin) Marshaﬁ s mted Willi Boyd hiding tn the eskdcate of '1435"De30¢o

andthatthe

. mﬁnmantbelievedthatthismcidencewasamenﬂy"beingusedasa.safehouscbyWﬂlieBoydand
hi'saséodammstoreﬂlegaldmgsandweapons.”a_) %133%&&@%&3&&0st
SN mwt,:tmmd:sptﬁedthatBoydwasmrwtedatﬁxeDeSotomdcnccml%Z Accordmgly on June

i 2,1997 JndgeCaMmmdawmmtmmhthepmwsmen&dmg&dmgumsachm

Aﬁawmﬁs,Bmg&mfomedDefmdamJosephSm&ofmewmmtmquuwtedapohcc
( ‘ sqnadtomdemiheeﬂ'ectnahonofth:swmam. Bmgmmhsbd&nbasquad,themembersof
' winchoompnsethcotherdefendmtsmthlslawsmt. Ontheaﬁemooncrf}nne3 1997, the

[: Defendantscondtmdasearchofthnsmdence ‘I‘heparhwdxsptnewhctheranyoftheDefmdants
[ m;xoduoedawpyofawmmanlainﬁﬁ'AlbenGmauponhismqm&Whenﬂwywm
searching the DeSoto residence. mm;deposiﬁon,emtwﬁﬁe&thz'themﬁve&atmmim

~aﬁatheDefmdéntshad§taﬂiedﬁa&mh(_DeposiﬁonofAlmemei at 16-17). Greer

ﬁntbetclannsthatuponhlsamva] hcaskedﬂ)cDefendantsxfﬂmyhadawananttowndnctthm

search.(I_)Awmdmgto Gtcc:’steshmony,Defendanthgtss informed Greerthatmepohcc dxd '

-

" not need a warrant to search the DeSoto house. (Id.)

e B s S et

e

e S o s

Contrary to Greer’stestimony, the Defendants all claim that a copy of the warrant was shown
40 Greer spon his request. There are inconsisteacics, hovweves, among the testimony of several of
the Defendants concerning which particular officer showed the wairant to Greer. Burgess and
Defendant William Noonan have testified that Spiess read and banded Greer a copy of the warrant.
(See Deposition of William Noonan, at 12-14; Deposition of Garrett Burgess, at 56, 58). This

testimony conflicts with the testimony of Spiess, who has stated that it was actually Burgess who
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E i i ;:{ anowed‘“gig;ig{m a copy of the warrant. (___ Depoaﬁ;r; ;;w Spnss, at l7-18).”1m i

_—_— chzrdless of the inconsistencies in the Defendants’ testimony, 1txsclearﬂ:atthepames dispute
wl;ethaerwassbownacopyofﬁzewanambyanybftheDefwdamswhaiGm'gnivedatﬂw .

| .+ DeSotorsidence

i AT Inisundisputed, boweve, thatwhcnconducungthensearch,theDefendamsdxdnotdxscom

- anyillcgalnarcohcs. Wh:leoneﬁrwmwasfoundandse:zed,nocnmaldmgwhavccvcrbeen

i)

filed as a result of this seéarch. It is also undisputed that the Defendants did leave the DeSoto

residence in & certain level of disamay after their search. Two closet doors, which had previously

been locked, were kicked in by the Defendants. The Defendants pumched a mmber of holes in the

[e——— o

walls of two closets on the second floor. chaalpiewcoffumitmewereleﬁovﬂtumed,swhas

E a couch in the living area of the residence. Also, drosséi drawers on the second floor were leftin a
; state of disarray. In addition, the Defendants also confiscated a photograph album, several bills, a
Li " gold neckless, and some other personal papers.

E Subsequent to this search, the Plaintiffs filed their present action under 42 U.S.C. § 1983,

In their Complaint, the Plaintiffs claim that the Defendants’ search violated their rights undex the . . - .

Normarscled

Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. The Plaintiffs assert that the
search was unconstitutional, as they claim there is a question of fact as to whether a valid scarch

watrant was ever issued by Judge Calvin. The Plaintiffs also claim that even if Judge Calvin issued

preiey  peemany g
wvrerevend g

a warrant, that warrant was unconstitutional, as there was no probable cause for the issuance of a .
warrant, Inaddiﬁon,tthlainﬁﬂ'éoqnicndthaitheDefmdants’ execution of the warrant, if it indeed

eiistéd,wasalsounconsﬁnnionalbecanse tbe Defendants were overly destructive when conducting
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( e thmmch,andbecausetthefcndantssezmdnans suchas;ewelryandﬁnnﬂyphmhs’m ’.'.\
1 wmomdethesoopeofthewarrant.
W’nhﬂ)escfac(smnnnd,theCmmunnstotheDefendants MouonforSummatyJudgment.

{ " ..&WMW

r - . By T’hestandardsapplxmbletosxmmary;ndgmenimohonsarewcﬂsetﬂed. PmmnttoFedetal
Rule of Civil Procedure 56(c), acomimaygmxtamohonforsnmmm'yjudgmem:faﬂ of the |
:l . ..informéﬁmbcfme&wmmtshows'mapismgmnme'ismofmatﬁiﬂfaamﬂﬂmmvmgpmty
VI is eatitled to judgment asa iatter of law.” See Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 US. 317, 322 (1986).
‘ " The United States Supreme Court has noted that the "[sjummary judgment procedure is propedly -
3 : rcgmdédndwadisﬁvmedmwedmﬂsﬁomgbmrmhqsmmtpg;ﬂmoﬁhefedaalrﬂQa'
1 a whole, which are designed to ‘sccure thej'us:', speedy.and inexpensive determination of every _ |

. achon."’]c_l,at327 quotipg Fed. R. Civ. P. 1.

L) - Inmdatoobtamsmxmaryjudgmem,themovmgpartymmtdemonsu'ate "an absence of
{7 . evidence td support the non-moving party’s case.” Qlo_w_c,477U.S!.ai325. Once the moving party
mﬁwmigmw,ﬂ»mmp&tyx;m‘dohmﬁms;mplysyéwmaeismexﬁemphysw
: doubt as to the material facts.” Matsushita Elec. Indus. Co. v. Zenith Radio Corp., 475 U.S. 574, 586
(1'956). The non-moving party may notrwt onallegations or denials in the pleadings, butmust 'oome .
forward with ‘spesific facts showing that there is a gennine issue for trial.” Id. at 587, quoting Fed.
R-Civ .P. 56(3).
mmmgwmmm@mme@msmmmmmemmaﬁmm |
fa‘vmabl‘etotbcmn—moﬁngpmty,mﬂmustgiveﬂmm&mqvhgpaﬂy'thebmeﬁtofanyhifm,

that can logically be drawn from those facts. Matsushita, 475 U.S. at 587. Moreover, this Court is
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‘o resolve’all conﬂxcts i fvor of e non-movmg patty. Bobert Yohmison Gram Co= A &
. ‘W&AS‘“ F.2d 207, 210 (8th Cir. 1976). The trial court maynotwnsxderthe
- ctedx’bility of the witnesses or the weight of the evidence. White v. Pence, 961 F.2d 776, 779 (8th Cir.

With these standards i mind, tbe Court turns o the Defendants’ motion.” The Defendants
ﬂ_ - all claim that they are éxtitled to summary judgment as to all of Plaintiffs’ search and seizure claims

onﬂae basis of qtialiﬁed immumty Under the doctrine of qualified imxnﬁty, “goyernment

a—

offivials perforining discretioiary fanctions generally are shielded from hiability for civil damages
' msofarasﬂmrcondnctdmnotvxo]ate clwly wtabhsbedstannoryoroonsmunonal rights of which

armomblcpersonwoﬂdhavehmwn.”ﬂg_lowv E’Qg d, 457 US. 800, 818 (1982) Courts

e W o

employ a two-step test when detetmizﬁng whether a defendant is entitled fo qualified immnmunity.
. Sexton v, Martin, 210 F.3d 905, 909 (8° Cir. 2000). First, the Court must ascertain whether fhe

planmﬁ’has“assertedawo!ahonofaconsnnmm«mrynght”ld. citing Munz v. Michael, |

28 F.3d 795, 799(8"(Xr 1994) 'l'lnselcmentxscleaﬂymctmthepmcntwse,astbc?lmnuﬁ's

&&=

=

damthattheDefmdmﬁshmmhted&mFomthAmmdenghtbbeﬁeeﬁomumwsombk
‘searches and seizores. |

Second, the Court “must detezmine whether the constitutional right was clearly established
&tmﬁmmaﬂgpmmamhmga”ggmmommm. Corurts take “a broad view
of what constitutes cheﬂywtabhshedlaw’forthcpmpomofaquahﬁedxmnmtqumzy ”Id,
mgmnm 849 F2d 1117, 1121 (8 Cir. 1988). .If the law was not
clwlywtabhsbodaﬁwumcﬂm&spmdmnoomeiathﬁedmmmntydefememﬂ

v B commen B cmvunn B enibon
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_dcvclopmcnts,noroouldhcfatrlybesmdto “know’ thatthelawforbadcconMnctprewous]y
identified as unlawfil.” Hadow, 457 U.S. at 818. If, however, “the law was clearly established, the
imnunity defense ordinarily should fail, smceamsonably competcnt pnbhc oﬁczal shonldknow
thelawgovcmmghlscondnct.”m‘at&&w Thus,whcthaanofﬁcxahspmtecledbyquahﬁed. |
immumnity depends on the “otgecnvelcgalmmblenws, of his actions, ]Jd. at 819, for if an
objectively reasonable official would have known that his or her actions violate élealymabm
m,ﬁmmmwmmanmmwle.Mmmzé F3d647,652
(8th Cir. 1994).

The Plaintiffs counter that the "Defendants are xiot entitled o gualified immumity, because
thescarchandsdmwasnotsuppmtedbyévaﬁdwaﬁamdnd,wtheextémthe;cwgsa-wauang
the Officers exceeded the scope of the warrant issned.” (Plaintiffs’ Memorandum in Opposition, p.
3). hmmemamﬁﬁ;ﬁmdﬁmmeoﬂimmmtprmﬁtymﬁﬁequummdﬁmay
bewmemackaqueﬂimof&dasmwhemcrawmeﬁsmdmmchmcmor&m
Second, the Plaintiffs claim that even if a warranted exited, it was invalid, as it was not supported
by probable canse, Third, the Plaintiffs claim that all of the Defendants who aided Burgess in
conducting the search are not entitled to qua]iﬁedimm;m&tybemsememdqiyﬁgwmmnwas
invalid, and their reliance of the warrant procured by Burgess was thereforé nnreasonable. Fourth,
the Plaintiffs claim that the search performed by the Defendants exceeded the scope of the warrant.
The Plaintiffs contend that all of these actions violated clearly established law, and therefore the
Defendants are not entitled to qualified immunity. Tthomdisagrm

1. Existence of Warrant -
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mdcneegnswdatﬂ:etnneofth;esmrch. Tthlmnhﬁ'sc_:lannthatBnrgwsdidnotapplyforor

réceivc asearch warram‘in this matter. Thereis absolutely no evidence before the Court, however,

‘ tosupponsmhaclmm. InstarkcommsttothePlahﬁﬁ’s claims, ﬂchfendamshaveptovxdeda

oopyofanafﬁdavxtpmducedbytthlakoftheCuctho\m,CltyofStIAms.(Defcndants

Exhibit B). ‘That affidavit is signed by Garrett Burgess, and describes both his discussions with the
confidential informant and the transactions he personally observed when conducting surveillance on

the DeSoto residence. (I4.) The Defendants have also produced a copy of a watrant signed by Judge .-

.Calvin on June 2, 1997. (id.) Thiswmrmﬂoonnnandstheséarchoftbei)eSotor&déncefordmgé, '

weapons,dmgtrmsachonmoords,anmcy andanyothermstrummtsofhlguaﬂichng.@_)

The Plaintiffs’ on!ypmportedpmofthatawarmntdxdnotemstxstheuclmtbatﬂwywete .

unable to immediately obtain a copy of the warrant fromthe circuit cleck. However, this claim does

pot create a genuine issue of material fact. Even when viewing the facts in a light most favorable -

to the Plainfiffs, as the Court must when determining this motion, there is absolutely no evidence .

wlnchwouldaﬂowareasonablcjmorto conchﬂeﬁntawmmtdldnotmst Comequcntly there

1snogannnczssueofmatmalfactastowhcthchmgmapphedformdmvcdﬁomJudge

Calvina warrant to search the DeSoto residence. &Ammm_m,uwus.m,
106 S.Ct. 2505, 2506 (1986) (observing thatagéuninc issue of material fact dowhdatistnndq
Fed R.Civ.P. 56 when the evidencs s such that a jury could not find for the nommoving party);

Celotex, 477 U.S. at 325 (holding that summary judgment is appropriate in those situations where

: ﬁlemovmgpartydcmonsu'atwanabsmceofevxdcnoetosnpportthenon—movmgp@y’sclmms). ’

mevu,aﬁacksmthcvahdxtyofameustbesnppoﬂedbymetbmmmlmy
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: albgahons.ansv M_o_t_n§,810F.2d 1437, 1457(8thCn' 1987), Mm@gmmsﬂ;
_a__l.g Fullman v. m l_c, 739 F.2d 553, 562 (C.A’Ala. 1984). The Plaintiffs” attm:ks on the
mstmofawmanthowwar,meonlymwonﬁhytbmmwnclusoryaﬂegaﬁom Such

Bt &

. ‘-',’:-".; " 'IheComtholdsﬂmttbacxsmgcnmncxssncofmatmalmaestotheenstenoeofawarrm '

[
I
[‘- .'  | al]cgatwnsarcmufﬁcwnttocrweagemnne:ssucofmatcnalihct.
[

: Thzrcfoxe,'thc Defendants are entitled to qualified immunity as to Plaintiffs’ claims that the
H ' D&fmdantssmchedttheSotorcs:dmocwrﬂlochlmngawmmnt
G L ’g._mm ' |

' wand,ﬂpCtholdsdmme.wmraminqmsﬁbhwassuppmwdbyp&obabkcansd The -

U P,laim‘iﬁ'smimﬁtanumbcrofargmnmtsforwhytheybclicveprobablccausétoissucawma‘xﬁwas
z Iacking. Specifically, the Plaintiffs contend that Burgess® affidavit contained a number of false or
misleading statements. The Plaintiffs point to the fact that while Burgess® affidavit states that "}t
3 should be noted that Federal Marshals arrested Willic Boyd biding i the residence of 1435 DeSoto,”
T : @oe;Defuﬂanis’_ExmwB),his'aﬁidavh&mmtinfmmmemmmismmtom&mdiﬂ
L 1982,orﬁﬁmymwomﬁ§mchinqmﬁm “Thus, the Plaintiffs describe this information

j . regarding Willie Boyd’s arrest as being “stale.” In addition, the Plaintiffs aver that Burgess placed

outright falschoods in this affidavit. To Support this argument, Plaintiffs point to Burgess®
statements where he indicates that he conducted surveillance of the DeSoto residence, and that he

obsuvedwhaappmdmbetméﬁom'mmegﬂ&ugs. The Plaintiffs assert, however, that no

S sovutn RN oot

such transactions occurred at the DeSoto residence during the time period in question. Thus, the
Piainitiffs conclude that Burgess must bave been lying in his affidavit. Furthermore, the Plaintiffs

qestion the reliability of Burgess by pointing to his statement in the affidavit which describes a

= o s
=
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o " (Defendants® Exhibit B). 'I'thlz_tinﬁﬂh staﬁethat subsequent to the ﬁlmg of this lawsuit, Burgess
answaedaninlamgﬁmy question by stating that he had actually worked personally -with the

Lh conﬁdenualmfonnantmthepm Consequently, tbePlamﬁﬁ'sc:teth:smoonsrstwcybetween

H Burgess’ afﬁdavﬁandhmnﬁmmgﬂoryamwaasmdmwthattbeafﬁdmtmdalmngtbewanm
contained defiberate falsehoods. |

H _ There is no question here that the law is established as to the requirement of probable canse

H fqﬁeimmofaswchmtﬂwqmﬁonbbead&wse&kwbdh&ﬁemhagmﬁmm
of material fact as to whether the Defendants’ actions violated the law, i.e., whether the Defendants’

| atiions were objectively reasonable under the cleirly established standards concerning probable

{T cause, Ifawscinvolvesaq@iibnofp:bbabléca@cforahwenfmcmaﬁoﬂicial'sactions,thc

: case should not. proceed past the discovery stage if there is any reasonable basis to conclude that

¥ probable m existed. Cross v. City '. of Des M}m 965 F.2d 629, 632 (8th Cir.1992)(citing )

ti Hiunter v, Bryant, 502 U.S. 224, 227-228, 112 S.Ct. 534, 116 L.Ed.2d 589 (1991)). "A defendant

; neednotsb;)wthatthmwasonlyommx;ableommlmim'fmajﬁytomhonwhcmamobablc

cause existed, but rather, a court shonld ask whether the law enforcement officials acted reasonably

| wnder settled 1aw in the circamstances then existing, pot whether another feasonable, or more

: reasonable interpretation of the facts can be constructed years later.” Walden v, Carmack, 156 F3d

h 861, 870 (8th Cir. 1998), (citing Cross, 965 F.2d at 632). See also Hunter, 502 US. at 228, 112

j : S.Ct 534.

'y 'Tobevaﬁd,asmrchwmmtn;ﬁstﬁcbasedpponaﬁndingbyawmalanddaadmd

. Judlcxal officer that there is probable cause to believe that evidence, instrumentalities or fiuits of a

| | "
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. me,commband,orapersonfmwhosemﬂnaexspmbableé&isemaybefo‘mdmmplmm':.".. e

be searched.” __g@t_:_!_l_, 156 F.3d at 870 (ciﬁl}g Waxdm V. H_axg_is_q, 387U.8.294, 87 S.Ct 1642, 18

| L.Bd'2d7s2(1967))mesmdaxdofpmbabzemformeissuingjudgeiswh&her given the
AR totahtyofthecxrcumstamcs, thcxczsafmrpmbabxhtythatcommbandormdenceofacnmewxn
e beﬁmimapamaﬁarpm mm__,mus 213,238, 103 8.Ct. 2317, 76 L Ed.24 527

(1983); Ugted Sm v. Johnson, 64 F3d 1120 1126 (8th Cir.1995). Probable cause is "a fluid

w—mgmhammﬁmwmammaﬂmmwmmny,mm_ '
. usefnlly redmdtoaneatsetoflega]mlw Gites, 462 U S. at232, 103 S.Ct. 2317. Apphamons

aﬁaﬁdmﬁ&oﬂdhreadm&mmmmmdmtmagrudgnghyp«iwhmcalﬁshon '

Mmamﬁs 102, 109, 85 S.CE. 741, 13 LEA.2d 684 (1965).
| Mostnnportanﬂymregaxdstotheprwentmatter probable cause "may be found in hearsay
statcme.tnsﬁomrehablcpasons, Ea_l@,lStSFJdatK?O(mngQ_a&s,“ZUS.at%S 103S.CL

2317). Probable canse may also be found in hearsay statements from confidential informants

comoborated by independent investigation. Upited States v, Williams, 10 F.3d 590, 593 -(8th

' Cir.1993) (citing Draper v. United States, 358 U.S. 307, 313, 79 S.Ct. 329, 3 L.Ed.2d 327 (1959)).

See also, United States v. Mambu Fulgham, 143 F.3d 399 (8th Cir.1998). In addition, probable

cause may also be found "in observations made by trained law enforcement officers.” Walden, 156

FsdeO(amgmmmmmus 451 454,698.Ct. 191,93 L.Ed. 153 (1948).

Moreover,oncea;mﬁmaloﬁicerhasmwdamenponaﬁndmgofpmbablecmse,ﬂmﬁndmg

mgmdcfmgm_s.mus at236, 103 S.Ct. 2317.
Inﬂxemesancase,msumﬁmdthammg&wasmmactedbyacmﬁdmﬂmfom

' Thelenhﬂ'shavcnmdxspmdmatﬂnsmfomamhadpmvmrdmblemthepastwumahw

11
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enfomementagencm Itxsund:spmedthatmmhofme contamedemgcm’afﬁdavxf

hadbcmprovndedbytlnsconﬁdcm:almfoxmmt. Asstatedabove,pmbablecausetoassncawmant

may be found when a confidential informant relays information whwhmdlwtwﬂlatthc:clsafmr ’

yobabihtytbatcontabandormdmceofamcwiﬂbefomﬂmapmhmﬂarplacc mdwhe.nthat . .

. mformamhasatmckmcordofsupplymgrdmblcmfmmanon. Seey__@, 156 F.3d 869-71

Moreover, it is well settled that an informant’s reliability is established when he has proven reliable
moﬁaﬁwmfommtagmdwinﬁmpm& Tmmmcmmm;m@m&m
tﬁéhﬁ@aﬁonmoﬁ&dbyﬁ:ewnﬁ&nﬁdhfmmmtﬂntwaswmmem&davﬂ
véasmﬁicimwmabﬁshpxbbabxem '
Furthermore, the Plaintiffs’ assertions thai this affidavit contained false or misleading
tnformation donotMcagmmnemofmatmalfactastowhetherpmbablcwnsemsted.
TMeeﬁSSapmmpﬁmofvalidﬁywiﬁxrwpedmmafﬁdwﬁampofﬁngamchwm
Fraoks v. Delaware, 438 U.S. 154, 171 (1978). Bare allegations of an officer’s misrépresentation
wi]]notovmomcthmspmsmnphon,asmaﬁackonawmantsvahdlty must be more than

conclusory. Myers, 810 F.2d at 1457. The Plaintiffs point to no evidence to supporttheircontmﬁon

‘tliatBnrg&liedabomhisobsavaﬁonsoftheDeSoto'rwidmduﬁng}ﬁs}meL1997

sarveillance. Tthlmnnﬁ'sdomtdxspmethatWichoyiatomUmqwasmtedattbeDeSom
residence. WhﬂecmnganmconsxstmcymBmgas nnmogatoryanswers,thePlainﬁﬂ‘sdonot
dxspmethattheconﬁdenhal informant had indeed provenreliableto othalawmforoemuagm:iw.
In shot, the Plaintiffs claims of misrepresentation are bare allegations, supported by nothing more
fhat their own conclusory arguments.
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'exiﬂedt') support the issuance of a warrant. Therefore, the,Dcfcnd&msateallenﬁﬂedto qualified

imymunity as to Plaintiffs” claims that the Defendants searched the DeSoto residence without a valid
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Third, Plaintiffs claims that ali oftheDefendanfsotherthaanrg&csmnmsomblymﬁedon

hxspuwe:ﬂat:onofthewmantmqu@onmwnhomm Assmedabove,thmxsnogwmne

' mmof&aamwwbaawmmmm“amwmﬂmrMWMWasmpponedbymbabk

camse. mus,-an_ofthe Defendants that Burgess enlisted to help effectuate the warrant were
oﬂjecﬁvelymmblcmﬂ:chmﬁmmmiswmmtﬁmhzmm"mifmcmchwmhad
bqgksMWMapmhdbgofmomblemtheofﬁccrswhocxecutedthcwmantacted
in the good faith belief that probable cause existed based on the issnance of the warrant.” Walden,
156 F.3d at 872. Given the specific information contained in the search warzant affidavit, which
i;mdednmmymfmaﬁmpmmbymemﬁmammmaxmmfmaﬁmm
banrg&dunnghxs surveillance, "itwmrldhavebeenotgecuvclyrmomblefortheoﬂiocrs

cxecuungthcswchwmnttohaverehedonthelssmngyﬂge sdctcnnm&nomhat;xobablewzse

existed.” Id. (citing_Johnson, 64 F.3d at 1126). Sec also United States v. Smith, 63 F.3d 766, 769
(8th Cir. 1995) (holdhxgthatoﬁoasaﬂi&diquﬁﬁedim@mityﬁhmamchwmmtwasnm

.ﬁaciallyinvalidandcomﬁned sufficient facts that officers could have executed it with objective good

faith on probable canse determination of magistrate judge). Consequtly,eve:nifthcwarmnthad
been invalid, all of the Defendants would still be entitled to quabfied immanity, as they were
objectively reasonable to rely on Judge Calvin’s determination that probable canse existed.
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. Fomth,ﬂwmamamwmchtthcfendms@xecutedthewanangi.c.hcldnginlocked

. closetdoéts,pmclﬁngholcsinclosctwaﬂs;ovcrmingﬁnnitme and confiscating photes, jewchry,
e mdpasonalpapus, did notvxolate clearly established law regarding the execution ofswch' g

»W&.hummaﬁm dwmmonofpropmmatxsnotmsonablyneocssaxytocﬁbctuatca
; swmehwmantmaywolatctchonrthAmmdmmt. ' Tarpley v. Greene,684F.2dl(DC.Cir 1982).

However theComtﬁndslhemannamwmchﬂchefcndantswndmtedtheuswchdxdmtvmlm i

: _‘charlyes&ab!ishedlaWIegardfngthecxecuﬁonofswchwmmts. There is no question that the

‘search was extensive. However, this fact alone does not make it unreasonable. In regards to the

clomdooxs,ﬂleDefmdamsstatethatthac "isno gemﬁncissucofmata-ialﬁct ... thatlocked doors

nmstbeopMdﬁringthcpmtecﬁvesweep’toseeifpeopleminmew,fortheii’safety“ as well as

- 'thatofthepohce (Defmdant’sMemomndmn,p 12). 'I‘thmxrtagxm Breaking in these doors

waswasonablenotonlytomsmctthefendants safety, butalsotoperformthexrsemcbfordmgs

oroﬂmrinstmmentséfaimc. Likewise, as to the holes punched in the closet walls, the Court finds

thatanobywhvc oﬂ:’xcer conldhaverwsonably believed, based on his orhm’paStlaw-enfOtcunent .
a&peumces,thatdmgscouldbestashedbebmdmcwans. Fmﬁmmom,anob)ectwe}yrwsomble
oﬁoaeonldﬁndnmatytopcxformaﬂmmughmch of furniture, where drugs could easily
be hidden. |
chmdlmofﬂ:efactthatsomeofﬁlcPlainﬁﬁ%’ personalpropettywasconﬁscated,ﬂxe
P}ahﬁﬂkcamotshowthatanyofthchmssc’mdw&eimonsistm.vﬁththe parameters of the

search warrant_ "I.awcnforccmmtoﬂicialsm.lstha\'repmbable cause to belicve that items seized
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156F.3dat873. "Probable cause demands not that an officer be 'sure’ or'cerlaih'buion!ythai&e

factsavaﬂametbammnablymﬁmmmm'wmawmtabeﬁdwmnmmbe

eonuabandorstolenpmpertyorusdiﬂasevxdemeofam'"Umted E;@m, 109

F3d1327, 1330 (8th Cir.1997) (c:tahonscmxmd).&vmﬂxc wordmgofthemthwaxmandﬁzc

knownmrcumsmmcg!mgnsemthesmh,ob)echwlymab}clawmfmmmmtoﬁmals

wﬂdhavebeﬁévedthathephoto&jcmky,mdpammsdmdmofmchamhneasm

constitute contraband or evidence of cziminal activity.

lhemmnamwh:chﬂ)ebefendamspafmmedﬂmmnh:wasmmhlymcmym
eﬁ‘e&natethescaxchwanant, and therefore did not violate clearly established law regarding searches
and seizures under the Fourth Amendment. The Defendants are thus entitled to gualified immunity

on Plaintiffs’ claims that the manner of their search exceeded the permissible scope of the search

.

D. PRODUCTION OF WARRANT DURING EXECUTION

“The Plaintiffs.also claim the execution of the warrant was improper, as the Defendants did
mtmodmawpy'pfmewanmwhcnso;skedmmodwebye}m As sct forth in the statement
oﬁmmmmmmmafaammm&amofmemwmmm
by the Defendants upon Greer’s request. Fed R Crim P. 41(d) states that the “officer teking property
under the warrant shall give to the person from whom or from whose preinises the property is taken
aoopyofmewarram. In addition, Mo.Rev.Stat. §542.296(4) states asfollows.

Ifanypmpatynssexmd [dmmgasmchpm'snammawmam],theofﬁoershallngetothe

pnsonﬁomwhosepommn:stakm,ﬂ'hemprmgaoopyofﬂwwmrmnandm
itemized receipt of the property taken. .
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N -theDeMdewmphedwﬂhaﬂmof!hesestammpmmnmgwmcexmeOfwmamswhm

pcxfonnmgmenscamhoftheDeSotorcs:dmoc.

thﬁnsdlspmcoffadmmmd,theComtmﬁyordaedaddlhonalbncﬁngonﬂm

follomngtlneeqmuons (1)doamcdeﬁbmmlaumofpednamy 41(d) orMo Rev.Stat.
| 542.296(4)comsunmcawolat:onofextherﬂxeFomﬂxorFomwenthAmmdmcntstotheUmtedStates
i Consmnnon, (2) if the deliberate violation of Fed.R.Crim.P. 41(d) or Mo Rev.Stat. 542.296(4)
~.wnsuhnwamlanmofathaﬂ1chmhmFomwcmhAmeMmm.wsuchacmsumuoml
violtion a cognizable claim under 42 U.S.C. § 1983 when probable cause existed for the issuance
ofamwmgmuwmmmmdwhmamm.mmmmmm
Y of that warrant; and (3) at the time of the Defendants® June 3, 1997 search and seizure of Plaintiffs’

i

t; : residence, was it clearly established that such a deliberate violation was unconstitutional, so a3 to

l pmmewmm;m@seﬁommmgthﬁedmmumy

i - Aﬁamewmgmcpmm supplemental briefs, the Court finds that, evenwhen viewing the |
fadsmahghtmostfavorabletoPlainﬁﬁ's,theDefmdmisaresunmﬂedto qualified imuunity

G .onﬂmclann,bccanseatthcnmcofthclm3l997mhamlsemnc,nwasnotcleaﬂy

H established that the failure to follow Fed R Crim.P. 41(d) or Mo Rev.Stat. § 542.296(4) constituted
a constitutional violation. Tndeed, the Plaintiffs’ own memorandum highlights this point, as it states

H o ‘that "[v}aﬁousfedetalobmts!ni'eaddrwsedthisissne,gpeciﬁény related to violations of Federal

[l Rule of Criminal Procedure 41(d), bot they have ot always reached the same conchusion.”

i ' (Plaintiffs’ Supplemental Memorandum, p. 1). The ‘fact that coutts have reached differing

conclusions on this question demonstrates that the faw s not "clearly established” on this question.

4 ' : 16
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of Fed R.Crim.P. 41(d) or Mo:Rev.Stat. §542.296(4)cqnstmxtwaconstxtnnom] vzolanumsuma |

States v. Hepperle, 810 F.2d 836, 839 (8th Cir. 1987). The Plaintiffs’ dmﬁpﬁan of this case,

MWMghhghsmmmclameMmmtclmﬂywmth£mePlﬁnﬁﬁkm e

"Whﬂemtdimcﬂynﬂmgonthewmtatmmtblsmse,wﬂwdfy [ﬁleExghthCimmthcld]n L L

would be a constitutional violation if ... officers failed to presenta cqpy of the search warrant at any
time priorto leaving the premises." (Plaintiff’ Supplemental Memorandum, p. 2) (emphasis added).
As set forth above, if the law was not clearly established-at the time the disputed action
mmd,aqnaﬁﬁedimmmﬁty defense will genexaﬂysumd,as“anofﬁci;l conxdmtmmb&
bemmeaedmmnidmw}cgaldevebpmmts,‘mcmﬂdheﬁiﬂybesaidw‘know’ﬂnt- :
the law forbadle condm:notpreviousxyideziﬁﬁedasunlawfux » Harlow, 457 US. at 818. Such is
the case in the present matter. Itmayverywcllbetrmﬂmﬂ:eEighthCucmt’ decxslonml-_lggm
canberwdtomphedlyholdthmapohocoﬂiccrsfaﬂmtoptesentacopyofaswchwmram |
before leaving a searched premises constitiies a constitutional violation. Indeed, there erc anmmiber
of strong policy considuanonstosupport such a holding. But in this Comt’s view, a holding that
mu;tbeixipﬁedmhfmedﬁdmmopiﬁmdo&nm'msﬁm"de&bmbﬁsmwmm
meaning of the qualified immunity analysis. Furthermore, thero are a number of cases from other
circuits which find that failure to present a search warrant during a search does not constitute a

constitntional violation, if such a warrant existed at the time of the search. See United States v.

 Simmons, 206 F.3d 392 (4th Cir. 2000); Frisby v. United States, 79 F:34 29 (6th Cir. 1996). The

boldings of these - Circuits further support the Court’s belief that the "clearly established law”
wmbmwntofthequa]iﬁodhnmmityam]yéiscamotbémethiegmdsmﬁﬁschhn.
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deh'bcrate d1sn:gard of Fed R.Crim.P. 41(d) or Mo.Rev.Stat. 542.296(4) constituted a violation of

eiﬁm the Fourth or Fourteenth Amcndmexus to the United States Constitution. Therefore, the

_ ) Defendantsaremmledtoquahﬁedlmmnntyonthlsclmm
&mw

The final claim before the Court is Plaintiffs’ claim for repleviin. Thisclaimiéfotﬁcd

- solely on Missouri state law. Under28 US.C. § 1367(c)(3), a district court may decline to exercise

supplemental juisdiction over a claim over which it would otherwise nothave jurisdiction if “the
district court has dismissed all claims over which it has original jurisdiction. .. .» In this case, the |
onlyMclaimisPlahﬁﬁ’sstahclawreplevihclaim. Because the Court has dismissed all
claiins &a which it has original jurisdiction, the Couit declines to -exacisc"sv.qrplanmtai- '
jurisdict'ionov.erthisclaim. ‘ .
F. CONCLUSION
mwwmmﬁﬁwwmnﬁedmmmmc&mmpm’@mpm
Accordingly, |
nmmvommmmmmmMmmfmsmmegmmm
#87)stRANTED 'I‘lnscasestlShﬂSSEDWlTHPREJUDICE. Anappropnateordaof
Judgmmishanawmnpanyﬂnsmemmmdnmmﬂmder

So ordered this 6% 6B gay of April, 2001.

?Mm\,

E. RICHARD WEBBER
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGB
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